NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 24" Annual General Meeting of NeoGrowth Credit Private
Limited will be held on Friday, 18" August, 2017 at 5.00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the
Company situated at 503, Tower 2B, One Indiabulls Centre, S. B. Marg, Mumbai - 400013 to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

l.

Place : Mumbai i . Ravikumar
£ 27" July, 2017 Company Secretary

Date

To econsider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at March 31, 2017
and the Profit & Loss Account for the financial year ended on that date together with
Report of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Piyush Kumar Khaitan who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicabie
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, read with the Companies (Audit &
Auditors) Rules, 2014, including any statutory enactment or modification thereof, M/s, S,
R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, (ICAI Firm Registration No.101049W/E300004) be and
is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company and to hold the office from
the conclusion of 24" Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 29 Annual General
Meeting of the Company, on such remuneration including out of pocket expenses and
other expenses as may be mutually agreed by and between the Board of Directors and the
Auditor.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT to give effect to above resolution, Mr. Piyush Kumar
Khaitan, Managing Director and/or Mr. B.Ravikumar, CFO & Company Secretary be and
are hereby jointly and severally authorized for and on behalf of the Company to take all
necessary steps and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things which may deem
necessary in this behalf.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Neolyy owth Credit Private Limited

M

NOTES:1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO

APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF
AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

2)  THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING A PROXY SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN
FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING.
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STATEMENT TQ BE ANNEXED TO NOTICE PURSUANT TQ SECTION 102 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No.3

The Statutory Auditors, M/s. Singhi & Co. who have completed one term of five years at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and have stepped down as the Auditors of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors, the appointment of M/s.
S. R. Bathiboi & Associates LLP as the Statutory Auditors as their qualifications and
experience have been found to be commensurate with the size and requirements of the
Company. The Board of Directors considered the matter and has recommended the
appointment of M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP as the Statutory Auditors for a term of
5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the 29" Annual General Meeting, at such remuneration as shall be fixed by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

The Board recommends the proposed Resolution for approval of the Shareholders.

None of the Directors and key managerial personnel of the Company are concemned or
interested in this Resolution.

B. Ravikumar
Company Secretary




PROXY FORM

1We, of being a

Member/Members of NeoGrowth Credit Private Limited, hereby appoint

of or

failing him of as my/our

Proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 24™ Annual General Meeting of the

Company to be held on Friday, the 18™ day of August, 2017 and at any adjournment thereof.

(affix 1 mpee
Revenue stamp)

Signature

Folio No.

No. of shares

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be completed and deposited at the
Registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Meeting.
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NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
All Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in prescnting the Fifth Annual Report of your Company with the
Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2017,

It gives me great pleasure to share with you the company’s progress thus far and the thoughts for the
future.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The surnmarised financial results of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017
comparcd with the previous financial year are as below:

Rs. in Lakhs

2016-17 ) 2015-16
Revenuc from Operations 13285.03 4878.84
Other Income 515,93 191.04
Total Income 13800.96 5.069.88
Less : Operational Costs §9270.73 4,091,15
Manpower Cosl 3612.32 2,002.82
Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation 917.91 -1,024.09
Less ; Depreciation 153.89 121.39
Profit / {Loss) for the year 639.02 -1,145.48
Less : Provision for Tax 65.98 Nil
Net Profit / (Loss) 573.04 -1,145.48

Your company has earned profits in this financial year. The NPAT is Rs. 5.73 Crs as
compared to loss of Rs11.45Crs last year. The revenue from Operations have tncreased
from Rs 48.79 Crs to Rs 132.85 Crs.

2. A. Credit Growth and Asset Quality:

I am glad to share with the members that the disbursals during the year grew from Rs.
391.66  Crs. to Rs, 896.63 Crs. clocking a growth raic of 128, 93%. During the same
period the AUM grew from Rs. 265.54 Crs. to Rs. 607.57 Crs. which included off-balance
sheet book of Rs. 112.16 Crs.

Even as your company grew aggressively, the assct quality continued to remain under
control with Toss mates well under the istermnal benclumrh of 2,537,

B. Pathbreaking economic decisions from the government and its impact on business:

During the year, the country witnessed a major disruption in terms of demonctization




almost 86% of currency circulation by value and the digital push that government initiated
along with demonetization. The initial awe and shock of such disruption saw a degrowth in
disbursal for the first time after nearly 30 months of continuous growth. There was a short
term impact for 2-3 months on the growth of disbursals but 1 am happy to state that this was
a short blip and company’s growth march continued from Jan 2017, We were behind by a
quarter from our set targets, because of the impact of demonetisation but bounced back in

Q4.

The demonetization also brought in positive impact on the business outlook as therc was a
huge digital push from the government which took the number of PoS machines from 1.5
Millon to 2.5 Million in 9 months flat. This is positive for your company as the addressable
market which already is huge is becoming bigger. This made the company revisit its
strategy in terms of adding new geographies and accordingly your company has decided to
open additional 15 branches during FY 2017-18 to tap the additional opportunities that have
opened up.

You will be happy to know that your company has invested in Products, Technology and
Treasury areas to achieve the targeted growth, deepening the current relationships, widening
the area of operations and introducing new products in the market along with sourcing cost
optimization.

These investments are likely to show up in topline growth, profitability and operational
efficiency in the coming years.

Another path breaking economic legislation, the roll out of GST is likely to have far
reaching positive impact on our business. While it is likely to open us more opportunities
for lending as the economy is likely to get a fillip, it is also likely to leave lot of digital foot
prints which will enable the company to do more informed lending and mitigate the credit
risk.

Your company is currently in the process of implementing the systems and processes that
are required to be put in place for a smooth roll out and ensuring full compliance.

3. Dividend

With a view to conserve the resources of the Company for the targeted growth, your
Directors are not recommending any dividend this year.

>

Change in Charter documents:

In order to facilitate augmenting additional funds and expand Company’s area of
business activities by more infusion of capital, the Authorized Share Capital of the
Company was increased from Rs.36.5 Crores to Rs. 47 Crores divided into 1,90,00,000

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and 2,80,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- cach in
April, 2016.

Your Company is desirous of offering insurance products to merchants alogwith the
Loan product as a means of expanding the business relationship.

The main object clause of the MOA was amended on 18" May, 2017 adding insurance

business as Corperate Agent under IRDA guidelines apart from the company’s main
business of lending.
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Fresh Alutmient of Shares

In Junc 2016, 106 cquity shares and 94,858,272 preference shares were issued at @ prece
of Rs.113 17 per share (including a prermium of Rs. 103 17 per share). "

As a result of the above, present paid up <hate capstal of the Company stands cahance
ul Rs. 44 83 Crs and the Share Premium Account at Rs. 15.15 Ces. us on dote The Ne
worth of your Company stands at Rs. 15830 crores as at the end of the reponting yeart

Capital Adcauncy:

I'he Company’s Capital Adequacy was 30.49%6 as on 3] March 2017, which 13 nbm
the threshold hmit of 15% as prescribed by RBI

¥ - Liability Ma :

Your company toliows a consenvative amd prckenl cash flow management polky
cermmpany horrow s money for 2 longet tonor Than the matunty of its assets mklk‘d%lf a
comenative leverage ratio

A the postive skewness m the ALM s currently 100 wide, your company 1s planning
W use vanod finanaal instruments of shont term icnure to both reduce the cost of
borrowings s well as reduce the excess positive shewness in ALM The cusrent 29
months hability side average tenor is targeled to be brought down to around 20 months
whereas the asset side 1enor s Tikely 10 hover around 12 10 13 monihs.

Dbt Sourcinge and Credit Rating:

Durtng the year, your company raised debl 1o the extent of Rs. 349 Crs from vanous
financial insttutians, Rs.273 Crs through ssuances of NCDs | Rs. 67 Crs through term
loans from NBFCs & Banks and Rs. 10 Crs by placing commerial paper The
Company has a Cash credit facility of Rs. 10 Crs which wax unutilized as on 31
March 2017, Repayments of Inans of Rs. 14019 Cry.. wete made during the year. The
oulstanding Jdebt portfolio was at Rs 418 34 Cry. as on 31 March 2017

You will be happy to note that vour Company s sating improved to BB which was
ratcd by KORA, IndRA and CARE

Your Company was able to seurce funds vsing dafferent financial imtruments from
vancd sources both from off-shore and on-shate at a sigmficantly Jower cost

You wall be happy 10 hnow that veur Company successfully placed Comnwreal PapeTh
for the first ime dunng the year and continued with more secuniiZabon ANsSacHons.

Fusthet, your Compuny strengthened the Co-lending model by growmy the Co-lending
book ta Rs, 811.57_C'es as of March 3, 2017

Registration of Company as Corporate Agent upder IRDA Rexulatluns

Your Company curteatly caters to dusiness growth needs ol the clients Leveraging ¢
exising nfristructure & orgamzational strengths, your Company intends to extend i
product offening sn pantnerstup with lcading Geaeral Insurance, Health lnsurnance anI
Life Insurange compames of India satisfying the customer need for risk coverage and
protection [y walenng o muluple & sclated fnancial needs o the cuslomer, vt
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company intends to achieve higher customer satisfaction & hence better retention and
repeat business for core products.

Human Capital

Your company continues to value the human capital as one of the most important pillars of
success for the organization. Your company has processcs to make sure the right resources
arc sclected for the roles and provides an environment to create a culture of leaming and
successful execution.

The company has put in place a performance management programme matching to the
nceds of the organization and to reward the talents commensurate with the performance.

Your company has instituted a Balanced Score Card system across the organizahion to
align the company’s strategic objectives with the individual goals across functions, so as to
bring in maximum alignment in the organizational efforts to achieve the targeted
milestones.

During the year, the Company continued its cmphasis on improvement and upgradation of
the skills of its employces across the board. Your company imparts training for
knowledge on product, process and systems to ensure proper selling of our financial
products. Your company continues to provide opportunities for growth, differentiated
rewards and engagement for the employees. Your company has created communication
channels for the employeces to connect with the senior management including conducting
Town hall Meets. The employee relations continued to remain cordial during the year.

Your company gives utmost importance to the voice of its employces and seeks feedback
from cmployees by creating a framework by instituting a system of yearly employee
satisfaction survey conducted by an external agency of repute.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of Sexuval Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013 read with Rules thereunder,
the Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the year under
review.

Your company continues to be progressive in its efforts to introduce policies which will
give work life balance to its employees. The company has a policy of flexible working
hours and also introduced a mandatory leave policy for the staff to get rejuvenated and
recharged after work break at least once a year. For the benefit of woman employees, the
Company introduced a liberal Maternity Leave Policy beyond the legislated norms and
Pink Day Policy providing flexible working arrangement for female employees.

Your company has also implemented a whistleblower policy to have a vigil mechanism

so that any unethical or improper activity at any level can be brought to the notice of the
Audit Committee and the Board.

Corpgorate Social Responsibility:

Your company is commilted to do the business with the purposc of creating a social
impact amongst the targeted merchant community in the bottom of the pyramid.

Your company conducts an annual survey amongst a sample of our customers to
understand whether the company could create the desired impact. We are happy to share

with you that the results continue to show positive indicators like creation of more .—=
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employment, improving the bankability of the merchant, improved CIBIL score of the
merchants, helping the women entreprencurs etc.

Customer Retention Measures:

Your company has instituted a robust customer redressal framework and also conducts
an annual customer satisfaction survey to get an unbiased customer fcedback. These

customer feedbacks are used to remedy and redress any gricvances by improving on the
processes or offerings.

Your directors are happy to report that your company has been able to maintain a
healthy customer reteniion ratio.

Future plans

1 am delighted to share with you that your company will continue to invest in areas of
Technology and Product innovation. Your company has invested in developing Mobile

apps and web interfaces to make the delivery of products to customers faster and easier
to get a superior customer experience.

The operations are streamlined by bringing in more automation and straight through
processes in the lending workflow for reducing the cost of operations and bring in more
cfficiency.

As the company is growing and is likely to cross the threshold for being categonized as
systemically important NBFC, internal control measures and systems and processes for
compliance tracking are being focused on and investments are made in these areas to
strengthen the governance and oversight mechanism.

Material Changes and Commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position
of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

Risk Management Policy

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy to identify, assess, monitor and
mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the busmesses
and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing
basis. The Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its
business and the size and complexity.

Your company has initiated a review mechanism by an external agency to asscss the
Intemmal Financial Controls by asscssing the processes across functions and the
information security measures that are in piace and testing the robustness of the

existing control measures so as to further strengthen the processes and controls where it
is wanting,
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Particulars of Loans, Guarantees Or Investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments are given in the notes to the Financial

Statements.

17. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements With Related Parties Referred to in

B)

O

Section 188

Particulars of the transactions as prescribed in Form AQC - 2 of the rules prescribed
under Chapter IX relating to Accounts of Companies under the Companies Act, 2013 is
attached and forms part of this Report.

A) Directors

In June, 2016 Mr. Prashasta Seth, representing IIFL. Seed Ventures Fund I and Ms.

Smita Aggarwal, represcnting ON Mauritius were appointed as a Director of the

Company.

Mr. C. V. Madhukar resigned from the Board in June, 2016. The Board appreciates the

cxccllent support and contnibution of Mr. C, V. Madhukar.

Mr. Piyush Kumar Khaitan is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General

Meeting and has offered himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-

appointment.

The remuncration of Executive Director i1s 10.45 times to the median employees’

remuneration.

Meeting of the Board:

During the financial year 2016-17, the Board duly met 19 times on:

25/04/2016, 12/05/2016, 26/05/2016, 30/05/2016, 13/06/2016, 16/06/2016,

21/06/2016, 27/06/2016, 21/07/2016, 16/08/2016, 15/09/2016, 09/11/2016,

17/11/2016,  21/12/2016, 19/01/2017, 27/02/2017, 09/03/2017, 23/03/2017,

31/03/2017

Reconstitution of Audit Committee and constitution of Compensation and Credit
Committee

Your Company reconstituted its Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and

Credit Commitiee in July, 2016 to further strengthen and build a robust governance

structure.

Further a Borrowing and Resources Committee of Directors was set up to decide

borrowing strategy and give focused attention to the borrowing proposals and for fats

tracking the decision making.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

As required under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm that
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(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that are reasenable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that period ;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities ;

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concem basis;

{(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such intcrnal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively

(f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems arc adequate and operating cffectively.

20. Fixed Depaosits

The Company has not accepted any deposit during the year under revicw,

21. Conservation of Energy, Technolopy Abserption

Your Company is in the Service Industry wherein the cost of Energy in its operation is
not substantial. However, all necessary steps are taken to conserve energy wherever
possible. The Company continues its emphasis on innovation and technology
improvement at all levels.

22. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year was NIL and the
Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows was Rs.56.38 lacs.

23.  Particulars of Emplovees & Stock Appreciation Plan 2015

The table containing the names and other particulars of employees in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

(Appeintment and Remuncration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 is annexed to
this Report.

During the year under review the Company granted Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR) to
eligible employees. The Company further granted 4,46,000 SARs with cqual vesting on
completion of every anniversary. 1,66,300 SARs were reversed on resignation of cligible
employees. Hence, the total number of SARs granted are 13,16,900 as on 31 March,
2017.

24.  Auditors

The Board of Directors have recommended appointment of S.R.Batliboi & Associales
LLP (Indian cntity of EY) to act as Statutery Auditor for the current financial y




ending March 31, 2018 as M/s. Singhi & Co, the current Statutory Auditors wished to
resign having completed a 5 years term. Members are requested to appoint the new
auditors and give mandate to audit committee to fix the remuneration.

25.  Extract of the annual return

The extract of the annual return in Form No. MGT - 9 is attached and forms part of this
Report.

26. Secretarial Audit Report

The Secretarial Audit Report as required w's 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached
and forms part of this Report.

27.  Appreciation

We are grateful to the Government of India, the State Government, the Reserve Bank of
India and other Regulatory authorities for their valuable guidance and support and wish
to express our sincere appreciation for their continued cooperation and assistance.

We wish to thank our Bankers, Investors, Lenders, customers, business associates for
their continued support and trust reposed on us.

Your directors acknowledge with gratitude the encouragement and support extended by
our valued sharcholders and by the employees at all levels.

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors

B st arton

Place: Mumbai Dhruv Komar Khaitan
Date: 20" July, 2017 Chairman
DIN: 00002584

Address: 503, Tower 2B, One Indiabulls Centre, S. B.
Marg, Mumbai 400013



Anonexure to Directors Report

Information as per Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the
Directors Report for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Employee name Mr. Raju Shetty
Designation Chief Technology Officer
Remuneration received 1,05,00,000

Nature  ofemployment, whether On Payroll
contractual or otherwise

Other terms and conditions Asper Company’s hiring policy
Nature of duties of the Technology enablement of
Employee business operations
Qualifications and BE(EC), MS, IT

experience of the employee
Experience: 16 Yrs

Date of commencement of 4™ December, 2015
employment

| Age 39 y1s
Last employment held by Flipkan

such employee  before
Jjoining the company
Percentage of equity shares held by] Nil
the employee in the

company  within the
meaning of sub-clawse (i1} of
clause (a) of sub-section {2A) of
section 217 of the Act

Relationship with any of the No
Directors or Managers of the

Company

Note: Remuneration shown above includes the amount spent by the Company on behalf of the employee for
providing the perquisites.

/8““ Ix&




Form No. AQC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred o in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length

transactions under third proviso thereto.

L. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis - NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Nam‘e(s) qf the related party and nature of Dilta Services LLP
relationship
Nature of contracts/ Shared Services

arrangements/ transactions

Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ Annually

transactions

Salient terms of the contracts Rs. 13,41,648

or arrangements or

transactions including the Shared services recovered from Dilta.

value, if any

Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any 19" October 2015

Amount paid as advances, if any




Form No. MGT -9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31* March 2016

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN: US1504MHI1993PTC251544
i) | Registration Date 17" May, 1993
i) | Name of the Comnpany NeoGrowth Credit Private Limited
iv) | Category/Sub Category of Private Company/ Limited by shares
the Company
v) | Address of the Registered office 503, Tower 2B, One IndiaBulls
and contact details Centre, 841, S. B. Marg, Mumbai
vi) | Whether listed company (Yes/No) Yes
vii) | Name, Address and Contact details of | Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 &
32  Gachibowli, Financial  District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally
Hyderabad — 500 008

IL. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company
shall be stated)

SI. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
No. | products / services Product/service of the Company
1) | Other financial service K649 100%

activities, except insurance
and pension funding
activities

IIl. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SI. | Name and CIN Holding/Subsidiary/ | % of | Applicable
No | Address of Associate Company | shares | Section
the Company — = held
i) |= -

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN {(Equity share Capital Breakup as percentage of total
Equity)

i.Category-wise ShareHolding

Category of No.of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end of the %

Shareholders of the year Year Change
during
the

pars




Demat

Physica
1

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of|
Total

Shares

A. Promotcr

1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

1800000
0

1800000
0

99.99

1800000
0

1800000
0

99.99

b)Central Govt

c) State Govt(s)

d)Bodies Corp

c)Banks / Fl

1)Any Other

Sub-total(A)(1):-

1800000
0

0

1800000 |

99.99

1800000
0

1800000
0

99.99

2} Foreign

g2)NRIs-
Individuals

h)Other-
Individuals

i) Bodies

j)Banks / Fl

k) Any Other....

Sub-total( A} 2):-

Total Promoters
Shareholding
(Ay=(A)}DHA)
2)

1800000
¢

1800000
0

99.99

1800000
0

1800000
0

99.99

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b)Banks / Fl

c)Central Govt

d)State Govt(s)

e}Venture
Capital
Funds

1) Insurance
Companies

g)FIls

h}Foreign
Venture
Capital
Funds

1) Others
(specify)

Sub-total(B)(1)




2. Non
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian
(1) Overseas

100

300

400

0.01

200

300

500

0.01

0.001

b) Individuals

(i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

(i1) Individua
]
shareholders
holding
nominal
share capital
in excess of

c) Others
{Specify)

Sub-total{B)}{2)

100

300

400

0.01

200

300

500

0.0{

0.001

Total Public
Sharcholding
(B)=(B)(I)x+
(BX2)

100

400

0.01

200

300

500

0.001

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

300

Grand Total
(A+B+(C)

1800010
0

300

1800040

0

160

1800010

0 300

1800050
0 100

1L.Shareholding of Promoters

Sr.

No Name

Sharcholder’s

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Year

Shareholding at the end of the

No. of
Shares

°/o Of
total

Shares
of the

% of
Shares
Pledged
/

No. of
Shares

% of
fotal
Shares
of the

% of
Shares
Pledged /
encumber

% change
in share

Holding
during the

—

4+ Mr. Dhruv
Kumar

iKhaitan

90,00,000

49,99

90,00,000

49.99




2| Mr. Piyush 90,00,000 | 49.99 - | 90,00,000 | 49.99
Kumar
Khaitan
Total 180,00,08 99.99 180,00,08 99.9% : 3.66
iii.Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) - NO CHANGE
Sr. Sharcholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
no of the year during the year
No. of shares  |[% of total No.of [% of total
shares of the shares [shares of the
company company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase /
|Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons
for increase

decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

At the End of the year

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, promoters and Holders
of GDRs and ADRs).-

Sl Shareholding at the beginning [Cumulative Shareholding duning the
No of the year year
For Each of the [No. of shares (% of total No. of shares % of total shares of
Top 10 shares of the he company
Shareholders company

1 [Name of the Shareholder - ON Mauritius

At the beginning of] 100 0.0006
the year
Date-wise 32 (Transfer off 0.0002 68 0.0004

Increase/ Decrease | equity shares
in Shareholding  [on 19.01.2017)
during the year
specifying the
reasons for
increase/
decrease(e.g.
llotment/ transfer/
onus/sweat equity




At the End of the
year (or on the date
of separation, if
separated during

68

0.0004

[Name of the Sharcholder — Aspada

Investment Company

At the beginning of]
the year

100

0.0006

100

0.000

Decrease in
Shareholding
during the year
specifying the
reasons for
increase/
decrease(e.g.
allotment/ transfer/
bonus/sweat equily i

Date-wise Increase/

100!

0.0006

At the End of the
vear{or on the date
of separation, if
separated during
the year)

100

0.0006

100

0.0006

Name of the Shareholder — Khosla Impact [ Mauritius

At the beginning of|
the year

100

0.0006

100

0.0006

Date-wise Increase/
Decrease in
Shareholding
during the ycar
specifying the
reasons for
increase/
decrease(e.g.
allounent/ transfer/
bonus/sweat equity

100

0.0006

At the End of the
'year (or on the date
iof separation, if
separated during

the year)

100}

0.0006

100

0.0006

Name of the Shareholder — Accien Frontier Inclusion Mauritius

At the beginning of]
the year

I OO‘i
|

0.0006

100

s




Datg-wise
Increase/ Decrease
in Shareholding
during the year
specifying the
reasons for
increase/
decrease(e.g.
allotment/
transfer/
bonus/sweat

equity

At the End of the
year (or on the date

of separation, if
separated during
the year)

LOO

0.0006

100

0.0006

Name of the Shareholder — I1FL Seed Ventures Fund [

At the beginning
of the year

[

Date-wise
Increase/ Decrease
in Shareholding
during the year
specitying the
reasons for
Increase/
decrease(e.g.
allotment/
transfer/
bonus/sweat

equity

100

0.0006

100

0.0006




At the End of the 100 0.0006 100 0.0006
year {or on the date
of separation, if
separated during
the year)

Name of the Shareholder — WestBridge Crossover Fund LLC

At the beginning : - 32 0.0002
of the year

Date-wise 32 {Received 0.0002
Increase/ Decrease | equity shares
in Sharcholding from ON
during the year Mauritius on
specifying the 19.01.2017)
reasons for
increase/
decrease(e.g.
allotment/
transfer/
bonus/sweat
equity

At the End of the 32 0.0002
iyear (or on the date
of separation, if
separated during
the year)

(v)Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: -

SL. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the
No beginning of the year year
[For Each of the {No. of % of total No. of shares 7o of total shares
I]l)(i;:ctors and shares shares of the f the company
P company
Name of the Director: Mr. Dhruv Kumar Khaitan




At the beginning of]  90,00,000 49.99 90,00,000 49.99
the year

Date-wise
[ncrease/ Decrease
in Sharcholding
during the year
specifying the
reasons for
increase

decrease

(e.g. allotment/
transfer/ bonus/
lsweat

At the End of the 90,00,000 49.99 90,00,000 4999
ear

2. [Name of the Director: Mr. Piyush Kumar Khaitan

At the beginning of| 90,00,000 46.99 90,00,000 49.99
the year
Date-wise
[ncrease/
Decrease in
Shareholding
during the year
specifying the
reasons for
increase
decrease

(¢.g. allotment/
transfer/ bonus/
lsweat

Equity etc): ~ ] -
At the End of the 90,00,000 49.99 90,00,000 49.99
ear

V. INDEBTEDNESS AS ON MARCH 31, 2017:

Secured Unsecured Deposits | Total
Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year
1) Principal Amaunt 1,84,46,30,671 25,00,00,000 209.46,30,671




i} Interest due but not paid
111} Interest acerued but not due 1,42,20,522 1,42,20,522
Total (I + il +iii) 1,85.8851,193 23,00,00,000 2,10,88,51,193
Change in indebtedness during the financial
year
Addition 3,40.04,67,000 9,02,93,400 1.49,07,60,40¢
Reduction 1,15,19,90,777 25.00,00,000 1,40,19.90.777
Net Changes 2,24,84,76,223 (15,97.06,600) 2,08,87,69,623
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i} Principal Amaount 4,09,31.06,894 9.02,93.400 4,18,34,00,294
1) Interest due but not paid
iii} Interest accrued but not due 5,92.16.001 24 99,782 | 61715783
Total (i+ii-riii) 4,15,23,22.895 927,903,182 4,24,51,16,077
VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole — time Directors and/or Manager:

SL| Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Director:
No Mr. Piyush Kumar Khaitan
1.| Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provistons contained in Section | 44,40,000
17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
{b)Value of perquisite w's 17(2) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961
(c)Profits in lieu of salary under Section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option
3 | Sweat Equity
4 | Commission
- As % of profit
- QOthers, specify
5 | Others, please specify
Total (A) 44,40,000
Ceiling as per the Act




B. Remuneration to other Directors:

SI. | Particulars of Fee for attending | Commission | Others, Total
No, | Remuneration board/committee Professional | Amount
meetings fees
1 | Independent
Director
Total (1) - -
2 | Other Non - 18,00,000 (18,00,000
Executive
Directors
Total (2) 18,00,000
Total (B) = (1+2) 18,00,000 [18,00,000
Total 18,00,000 (18,00,000
Managerial
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as
per the Act

C. Remuneration to key managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/Whole Time
Director/CEQ/CFQ/CS -

SI. [ Particulars of Remuneration Key managerial
0 Personnel
CFO & CO0 Total
CS
I Gross Salary
{a) Salary as per provisions 78,64,103 | 92,44,297 | 1,71,08,400
contained in Section 17(]) of
the Income Tax Act, 196]
(b)Value of perquisite w's 17(2) of 14,40,000 14,40,000
the Income Tax Act, 1961
(¢c)Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option
3 | Sweat Equity
4 | Commission
As % of profit
Others, specify
5 | Others, please specify :
Total 93,04,103 | 92,44,297 | 1,85.48.400
/E‘Z(}-c




VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties, punishment or compounding of offences during the year ended
31" March, 2017.




SACHIN DEDHIA & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sachin ®, Oedhia ACS., LL.B., B. Com

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2016-17
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act. 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

To,
The Members,
Neogrowth Credit Private Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of all applicable statutory provisions for the
financial year 2016-17 of Neogrowth Credit Private Limited (hereinafter called the
Company), incorporated on g May 1993 having CIN:U31504MH1993PTC251544 and
Registered Office at 503, Tower 2B. One IndiaBulls Centre, 841. S. B. Marg, Mumbai -
400013. Secretanal Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion. the Company has. during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31% March 2017 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

Wec have examined the books, papers. minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March 2017
according to the applicable provisions of:

(1)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i1) The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA") and the rules made
thereunder wherever applicable;

(1) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings;

104, Sushila Apt, Devidas Lane, Borivali (W), Mumbai - 400103
Tel: 99242 63448; Email — cssachindedhia@yahoa.in
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Sachin ®. Dedhia ACS., LL.B., B. Com

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’):-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;
{b) The Securities and Exchange Beard of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {(Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

{vi) Following other laws as may be applicable specifically to the Company
(a) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
(b) Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002
(¢) Information Technology Act, 2000

I/we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The [nstitute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Debt Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent as per the provisions of the Act, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

104, Sushila Apt, Devidas Lane, Borivali (W), Mumbai - 400103
Tel: 89202 63448; Email — cssachindedhia@yahoo.in
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We further report that during the audit period the Company has transacted following material
activities through the approval of Board/Members, wherever applicable:

1) Special Resolution dtd 28" April 2016 for Increase in authorised share capital from 36.5
crores to 47 crores;

2) Allotment 2,02,467 secured, rated, listed. redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs,
1,000/~ each on Private Placement basis on 26™ May 2016 to Global Commercial
Microfinance Consortium 11 B.V.;

3) Allotment of 100 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and 94.88.272 preference shares of Rs.
10/- each both at a premium of Rs. 103.17/- per share on Private Placement basis on 21% June
2016;

4) Special Resolution did 21% June 2016 for Alteration of Articles of Association of the
Company.

5) Allotment 333 & 67 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs.
10,00,000/- each to MicroVest Short Duration Fund LP and MicroVest+ Plus, LP
respectively on Private Placement basis on 27" June 2016:

6) Allotment 403 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs.
10,00,000/- each on Private Placement basis on 16™ August 2016 to AAV Sarl;

7) Allotment 400 secured. rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs.
10,00,000/- each on Private Placement basis on 29" September 2016 to BlueOrchard
Microfinance Fund,

8) Special Resolution did 15™ December 2016 u/s 180(1)(a) & 180(1}(a)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013,

9) Allotment 350 secured, rated. listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs.
10,00,000/- each on Private Placement basis on 7" February 2017 to UTI International
Wealth Creator 4.

10) Special Resolution dtd 10" February 2017 for Alteration of Articles of Association of the
Company.

11} Allotment 325 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs.
10,00,000/- each on Private Placement basis on 16" March 2017 to ACTIAM Institutional
Microfinance Fund [II (AIMF I1D);

12} Allotment 2500 secured, rated, listed, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs.
1,00,000/- each on Private Placement basis on 29™ March 2017 to A. K. Capital Services Ltd.

Dae: Qoth July, T SACHIN DEDHIA & ASSOCIATES
, J COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mumbai

"

SA N DEDHIA
MEM. No. A-20401, COP Nev 9427
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SACHIN DEDHIA & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,
The Members,
Neogrowth Credit Private Limited

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate 1o obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on the random test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices. we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of Financial Records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of procedures on random test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

' SACHIN DEDHIA & ASSOCIATES
L j‘gj ) Qo+ COMPANY SECRETARIES

1:/

Mumbai

v,
SAZHIN DEDHIA
MEM. No. A-20401, COP No. 942f

104, Sushila Apt, Devidas Lane, Borivali (W), Mumbai — 400103
Tel: 89202 63448, Email - cssachindedhia@yahoo.in
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Independent Anditor’s Report

To the Members of NeoGrowth Credit Private Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEOGROWTH CREDIT PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreguiarities:
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our auvdit,

In conducting our audit. we have 1aken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures thal
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overatl presentation of the financial statements.

r_.-"e,(-.’ N
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We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31* March, 2017, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

L.

Note 26 (i) (a), which describe impact of change in accounting policy for recognition of Non —
Performing Assets, classification and provisioning thereon. Had the Company followed the
previous policy for classification and provisioning for sub-standard. doubtful & loss assets. the
provision recognized for the year would have been higher by Rs. 196.64 iacs as compared 10 Rs.
853.02 lacs including bad debts i.e. loans written off amounting to Rs. 957.09 lacs recognized as
per the revised policy.

Note 26 (ii), which describe impact of change in accounting policy for borrowing cost. Had the
Company followed previous policy for expensing out the expenses as and when incurred. the
amount of finance charges would have been higher by Rs 144.90 lacs as compared to Rs. 4.3108.52
lacs recognized as per the revised policy.

Qur opinion is not qualified in respect of above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016: issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (i1) of section 143 of the Act (*the order”), and on the basis of
examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure "A’ statement on the matters specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books:

c} the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinien, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable  Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accouats)
Rules, 2014;

¢) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2017

taken on record by the Board of Directors—page of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March,
2017 from being appointed as a dil}q@pﬂ (i 2of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
[/ %



f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure ‘B’, and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended. in our opinion and o
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i

ii.

iy,

Place: Mumbai

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable tosses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the financial statements as regards its
holding and dealings in Specified Bank Notes as defined in the Notification S.0. 3407(E)
dated the 8" November, 2016 of the Ministry of Finance. during the period from 8
November 2016 to 30" December 2016; and such disclosures are in accordance with the
books of accounts maintained by the Company. Refer Note 40 to the financial statements.

For SINGHI & CO.
P Chartered Accountants
Firm Regisn;ation No. 302049E

Yoo

LW

— Suil;endra Lodha
Partner

Date: ] ] HAY 20” Membership No.071272



Annexure A referred to in paragraph ] under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: NeoGrowth Credit Private Limited (the Company)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, physical verification of fixed assets has been conducted by the management
during the year, which, in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
nature of its assets. As explained to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the examination of
the records of the Company, the Company is not having any immovable property. Accordingly,
provisions of the paragraph 3 (i)(¢) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company is a Non - Banking Financial Company and it does not hold any inventory. Thus.
provisions of the paragraph 3 (ii} of the Order are not applicable.

As informed to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms
or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act with respect to investments made. The
Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantee or security to the parties covered under
section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of
the Act and Rules framed thereunder 1o the extent notified.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion. the Company is not
required to maintain cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(vi) of the Order are nat applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance. Income Tax. Service Tax, Cess and other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, Employee’s State Insurance. Income Tax. Scrvice Tax. Cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2017 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of Income tax, Sales tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Customs duty. Excise duty
and Cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute .

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
provided to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any Financial
Institutions or Banks or dues to debenture holders. Further as at the Balance sheet date the Company
does not have any loans or borrowing froms




(ix) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the money raised by
way of term loans and debt instruments have been applied for the purpose for which they were
obtained. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
during the vear.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accardance with the generally accepted auditing practice in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees noticed or reported during year nor have
been informed of any such case by the Management.

(xi}  Provisions of the Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, related to managerial remuneration applies
to public company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable.

(xit)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required under Accounting standard (AS) 18, Related Party Transactions.

(xiv)  The Company has made preferential allotment of cumulative convertible preference shares during the
year and has complied with the provisions of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013. According to
the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company amount raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 since 13" September 2001 (updated on 13™ September 2013).

For SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registraﬁ n No. 302049E

L — J : ‘—_:;_f.l,_{e_.:

F N

Sulkhendra Lodha
Place: Mumbai Partner

Date: 111 HAY 20” Membership No.071272




ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 oi the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NEOGROWTH CREDIT
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31* March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal contro) stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of I[ndia. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate interna! financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial contrals over financial reporting included cbtaining an understanding 6f internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or errot.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of Thw%%
R
feg o



(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting. including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31* March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India,

For SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Sukhendra Lodha
Partner
Membership No.071272

Place: Mumbai

Date: 111 HAY 2017




NeoGrowth Credit Private Limited

Balance Sheet as ac 31s¢ March 2017

(Amount in R3.)
3 3ist March 2007 31st March 2016
PARTICULARS Notes (Rs.) (Rs.)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Tunds
a). Share Capital 3 44.83,21,920 35,34 38.200
b). Reserves and Surplus 4 1.11.43,43.202 8,74.84.974
1.56,26,65,122 44,0923,174
Non -Current Liabilities
a). Long Term Borrowings 5 3.21,05.88,658 1,19,73.82.704
b). Long Term Provisions 6 5,95,43,407 2,44,56,588
¢}, Other lLong Term Liabilities 7 11,38,236 11.10,246
3,27.12,76,301 1.22.29,49,538
Current Liabilities
a). Short Term Barrowings 8 48,35,07.669 21,54 81414
b). Trade Payahles 9
i).Creditors Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 2,56,89.822 92.39,533
ii).Micro and Small Enierprises - -
¢}, Other Current Liabilities ([} 74,58,06,420 76,76,27.8300
d). Short Term Provisions L} 10,37,56,929 4,07.11.036
1,35,87,60,840 1,03,30.59,783
TOTAL 6,19,26,96,.263 2,69.69,32,495
ASSETS
Non-Current Asseis
a). Fixed Assets 12
i).Tangible Assets 1.95.07.240 2,02,96,937
ii).Intangible Assets 08.,25,565 1,25,76.733
ii).Capital Work in Progress 16,08.039 -
b}. Long Term Loans and Advances 13 20.97.49.231 15.80,25.469
¢). Other Nom Current Asset 14 1,82,94,873 8.59.53.680
25,89,84,948 27.68,52 819
Current Assets
a). Trade Receivables 15 89,98,586 317476
b}. Cash and Cash Equivalent 16 1,17.84,84,143 8.59,70,112
¢). Short Term Loans and Advances 17 4.71,28,14,967 2,29.29,05,104
43, Other Current Assels 18 3,34,13.619 4,08,86.984
TOTAL 6.19,26.96,263 2,69,69,32,495
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying Nowes are an integral part ol the Financial Stalements.

As per our report of even date allached

For Singhi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reridflution No.302049E - ) ,L
& = .j S i | &, Q/Q JJ ‘—f_-"-l-"['—”""‘“-
-
Sukhendra Lotes— [ ® Smita Aggarwal Piyush Khaitan B.Ravi Kumar
Partner g Biedtas CEO & Managing P
Director
Mentbership No 071272 {DIN 01478327) {DIN 00002579) (DIN 00046966)

Place: Mumbal

Date: HAY 2017

Fo't May 2n1?



NeoGrowth Credit Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Fnded 31st March 2017

{Amount i Ka)
PARTICULARS Note Ne. For the year ended 30st  bFor the year ended 3t
March 2017 _ March 2016
INCOME
Revenue from Operations (net) 19 1.32,85.02,429 48.78.84.199
Other Income 20 5.15.93,606 1.91.04.200
Total 1,38,00,96,035 50.69.88,399
EXPENSES
Employee Benefits Expense 21 36,12,32,402 20,02.82.382
Finance Cost 22 43.98,52.420 18,78,87,308
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 12 1,53,88,746 1,21,39.196
Other Expenses 23 48.72,20,202 22,12,27.345
Total 1.30.36,93,770 62,15,36,231
Profit{Loss) before Tax & Exceptional livms 7.64,02,268 {11,4547832)
Exceptional ltems 24 1.25,00.000
I'rofit/(Loss) before tax 6.39,02,265 {11,45.47,832)
Tax Expenses
Current tax 6598462
Deferred tax 33
Profit/(Loss) for the year {after tax) 5,73,03.803 {11,4547,832)
Famnings per equity share [face value of Rs.10 each]
Basic carming per share (Rs.) 25 3.18 {6.36)
Diluted ¢caming per share (Rs.) 25 1.7l (3.95)
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying Motes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Smita Aggarwal Piyush Khaitan B.Ravi Kumar
Partner Director CEQ & Managing CFO & CS
Director
Membership No.071272 (DIN 01478327) (DIN 00002579) (DIN 00046966)

Place: Mumbai

F11HAY 2017




NeoGrowth Credit Private Lintited

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2017

tor the For the
year ended year ended
31t March 2017 315t March 2016

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVIIIES

Net profit before tax and extraordinary ilems 6,39.02.265 (11.4547.837)
Adjusiment for:
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 1,53,88.746 1,21,39,1%6
Provision for Gratuity 2504933 16,91,605
Contingency Fund utifizatien {22 50,026} 21,11,560
Profit on Sale of Investment {3.66,16,792) (90,61,221)
Inkerest received {76,06,752) {69.05.934)
Provision for Standard Assel 57.56.375 48.38.687
Proviston for doubtful loans and advances writgen off 8.,53,01,537 3.91.66,170
Sundry balances writeen off 13,513,527 -
Liability no longer required {41,31,006) {18,04,14))
Emplovee Compensation Expanses Account {SARs N Refer Note 310ip 32214136 1.68.37.332
Operaling profil befure working capital changes 15.58.16.943 (5.55.34.583)
Movernent in working capital
Increasefidecrease) mn Trade Payabies 1.64,50,289 58,12.434
Increasef{decrease) in Onher Current Liabilities & Provisions 13.456,94 835 [0.26,06,191
Decrease/{increase) in Loans and Advances (2,54.02,48.863) (1.99.52,18,395)
Decrease/lincrease) in Other Current Assels (30,35.078) (30,46,652)
Deecreasef(increase) in Trade Receivables {86.81.110) (3,17.476)
Cash generated from / (used in) operation {224 50,02 943) (1946298 48)
Direct taxes paid {net of refund) {§.24,715.286) {17.87.429)
et cash flow from / (used in} operating activities (A) {2,25,74.78.269) (1,94,80,35.910)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets £1,34,27.931) {1.60.79 855)
Purchase of Investments {12,36,66,00,000) (2,15,08,00.000)
Procecds from Sale of Investments 12403216792 2,16,57.05.325
Deposits with Banks and Financial [astitution (net) - (Placed} / Matured 4.38.19.725 (7.45.77.413)
Security Deposits (Placed) / Matured - (net) {58.82.015) (71.58.827)
Interest received 24,75.709 3370416
Net cash Mow from / (used In) investing activitics (B) 6,96,02,280 {7.9540.358)
. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares (net of expenses) 1,06,67,12.871 14,8382 281t
Proceeds from Borrowings 71,0293 400 1.72,75,00 004
Proceeds from Issue of Debentures 2.73,04,67.000 53.00,00.000
Repayment of Debentures (25.00,00,000) -
Repayment of Borrowings {1.02,53.70.007) {64.49.34 452)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (C) 3,23,.21,03,174 1,78,09.47.829
Net Increase/{Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 1,04,42 27,185 {24,66,78 435)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year B.59.70,112 33.26,48 547
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 1,13.11.,97.297 8,59, 70,112

Motes:

1 The Cash Flow Statemnent has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow Staicment as
specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended)

2 Deposit placed with banks and financial institutions including becn earmarked as collateral against the borrowings or otherwise, has ne1 been

considerad as part of Cash & Cash Equivalent.

3 Figures for the previous perigd have been regrouped / rearranged wherever found necessary.

As per our report of even date attached

Fer Singhi & Co. For and on beliall of the Board of Lirectors
Chartersy Accountams '-I
Firm Reffistration No: 302044 A | g P ) : |
e — L3 * B
/ e \OA—~ = -
SELn _{é_r " | % Smita Aggarwal Pivush Khaitan B.Ravi Komar
1 w R
Pattner 2N /& D Cmb‘:‘r::::'r"-'“- CFO & CS
2N
Membership NO.UT|272I'\\/01':&"A—G'°°°° (DIN 01478327) (DIN 0000257%) (DIN 00036966)

Place: Mumbai -
Date: ¢ 1 MAY 71




NeoGrowth (redit Private Limited
Notes to Financiel Stacements for the Year Ended 3151 Maceh 2017
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLLCIES

Corpocate Information

Neogrowth Credit Private Limited formerly known as BP) Credit & Invesiments Private Litnited was incorporated on I?th May I993 (mmc changcd we.f 261!1 September 2012) has
been registered with Reserve Bank of India under Section 45 - 1A of the Reserve Bank India Act, 1934 as non ~dopos ] nt Mon— Banking
Financia} Company w.c.l' 13th Scptember 2001 Presently the Company is engaged in giving loans to the merchants.

Sigpificent Accoyoting Policies
Basis of Preparation

The financial satements have been prepared in conforntity with generally accepted accounting principles to cornply in all material respecis with the notified Accounting Siandards
("AS") under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounis) Rules 2014, the guidelings issued by the Reserve Bank of India
(‘RBI") as applicable 1o 2 Non-Banking Finance Company (‘NBFC') and puidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBL), to the extent applicable. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are cf

wilh those used io (he previous year excepd for the change in accounting policies explained below. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
company's operaling cycle and other critena set out in Schedule 11 1o the Companics Act, 2013, Based on the nature of the producis and the time beiween the acquisitton of assers for
processing and on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets ar processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current- noncurmem classification of assets and lisbilities,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial stalzments require estimates and assumptions to be made thay affect the reponied amount of assels and Jiabilities on the date of the financial statements and

the reported amount of revenucs and expenses during the reporting period. Difference beiween aciual results and estivnates gre recognized in the period in which the resulis are
knownfmaterialized.

Reveoue Recopnition
Revenue is recognized i the extent that it is probable ikan the economic benefit will {low 16 the company and revenupe can be meliably measured as under:

i) hipterest lacome oo Lopn;

The Company is engaged in lending activity, having different loan products and revenue is primarily dedived lrom interest om loans.

Inerest on loans given is recognized wnder the inteonal rate of return denved in each loan agreement and accrued op daily basis on opening cutstanding principal. Interest of any other
charges on Non-Performing Assets are recognized only when realized and any such income recognized before the asset become non performing and remaining unreatized is reversed.

Dividend income is recognized when the right 1o receive dividend is established.

iil) Income on Securitized assets:
Income from secumtized assets is recopmized as Interest spread between accrued interest on the seeuritized assets and interes1 pavable to Lender.

) Others;
The Company follows the accruzl method of accounting for recegnition of inceme except for processing fees, delayed payment charpes, Temminal fees and other (ee based income,
which on account of uncertainty of uimale collection are accounted on receipt basis.

Service fee on Syndication is accounted on the basis of monihly collection done as per the lerms of agreement with syndication partners.

Tncome cecognition in case of Non Performing Assets (NPA) is done in accordance with the norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly income recognized on
MPA, remaining unrealized are reversed and are accounted a5 income when these are actually realized

Interest income on depasits with banks is recognized on a fime proportion accrual basis @king inig the ding and the ralc applicable
[ncore from sak of sharcs and securities of compani quired for the purpose of rading and held as siock in trade are recognized on trade dales,
Fixed Assetx

Tengible Assets are stated al cost bess accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price and any directly atiributable cost of bringing 1he assets
to ils working condition for s imended ase.

Intangible Assets are siated at cost less accumulated amontization. Cost includes any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use.

Depreciation and Amortization

Deprecation on tangibic asseis has been provided on the Writien Dovwm Value method as per the remainmy useful life of assets as per the provisions of Schedule |1 of the Companies
Act 2013, except ieasshold irmprovernents & Mobile Point of Sale Device which are separately mentioned here under.

Assets Lselul Bl As per £ empanivs Aor, 2003 Usefal e

License Property Improvement Work As per Lease Period
Office Equipment's. N

Mobile Poinl of Sale Device 2

Others 5
Computers o k] 3
Software:

Advance Suite As per AS-26 7

Others 6
lurni$ure & Fixlure 10 L)

Erepreciation has been provided as prescribed under Pan € ol Schudule 1 of the Companies Act 2013,
In mspect of Mobile Point of Sale Device. on the basis of usage pattern, the useful lives as mentioned above best represent the period over which management expects io use these
assets. Hence the useful life in respect of this asset is different from (he useful lik as prescribed under Pant C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2012,

All capital assets with individual value less than Rs. 5000/- are depreciated fully in the month in whigl they are purchased.
No salvage value has been estimated in case of license propenty improvement work, mobile ﬂ:! W i and advance suite.

& 7%
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impairment

The Company assesses at cach Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. IFany such indication exists, the Company estimales the recoverable
amount of the assel. [ such recoverable amount of the asset oF recoverable amount of the cash generalion uail to which the asset belongs is less than its cammying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is weated as an impairmnernt boss and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 1T at the Balance Sheet date there is
an indication thal i a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exist, the recoverable amowmt is rcasscssed and the assets is reflecied an 1he recoverable amoun.

Lnvestmeats

Long Term Investments are valued a1 cost. The company provides for diminution other than temporary. in the value of Long Term invesiments. Cusrent Investments are stated a
tower of cost and fair value.

Foreign Curvency Transactions

1} Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rale prevailing on the date of the transaclion or thal approxicate the actual rate at the daic of
the ransaction.

i} Monetary items denominaied in foreign currencics at the year end/sertlement date are restated al the vear end rases. In case of mongtary ilems which are coverzd by the forward
exchange contracts, if any, the differcoce berween Lhe year end rate and the rate on the date of the contract is recognizad as exchange rase difference and the premium paid on forward
contracis is recognizad over the life of contract.

iii} Mon Monetary RForeign currency Kems are carried ol cost.

iv) Any income / expenses, if any, on account of exchange differgnce either an setthemeni or on franslation is recognized as Revenue except in case where they relate to acquisition of
fixed assets in which case they are adjusted or capitalized to the carrying cost of such assets.

Employee benefits
i} Short term employee benefils are acceunted €or in the year in which the related services are rendered by ihe employ

ii) Defined Retiterment Benefit contmibutions are provided for on actual basis as and when the contributions acerues.
iii} The liability for Gratuiry, a deemed bencfil obligation, as and when acorued is provided for on the basis of actusrial valuation as at the Balance Sheer date.

Stock appreciation rights (SARs)

The cost of cash settled transactions (steck apprecintion rights) is measured inilially using fair veiue method at the grant date faking into account the terms and conditions upon which
instrements are granted. The fair value is amortized on 3 simaight line basis over the vesting period with a recognition of corresponding liability. This liability is remeasured a1 each
balance sheel date up 10 and including the serdement date wirth changes in inrinsic value recognized in statement of profit and 1o3s in employee benefit expenses.

Provisions

Pigvision_for Standard Assets
Provision on standard asscts has been made at 0.25% in accordance with the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI") guidelines.

Cl in nting P

Classificaion & Provision Tor Mon - Pe in; NP,

The Company has changed its policy for classification of Non - Performing Assets (NPA) and provision thereon. As per the revised pelicy, NPA recognition will be done on thc basis
of “days past due” of advances to the merchants and the lsency observed in the account

The following is the Company’s policy for classification of assets and pravisioning thereon:

Asset Classification Days Past Dues(DPD) Provigion %o
Advance past due for more than 120 1%
randard s bl than 210 o
e s Advance past due for more than 210 3%
Jays bt less than 270 days
Advance past due for more than 270 1007
Doubr ol Asser oy b less (han 300 days,
[Loss Assel Agvance past due for more than 300 100%

b. Based on percentage ol expectations (Jatency criteria}
1f the sepay from the har, in between the period of 30 days from date of disbarsal bul wpie 120 days, is not uplo 30% of the expecied payment. then account will be
classified as Sub-standard and 10% provision will be providegd.

c. Specific Provision - Any account based on portfolie behavior are recornmended for provisioning at 100% of principal outsianding

d. A Non - Performing Account will be regularized and classified as Siandard, once the DPD attains less than 120 days DPD in case (2) & less than 30 days DPD in case (b).

e. Any accound will trigger for wnite-ofT, il any of the condition meets:

i. 90 days from the date when specific provision (business chosure, portfolio behavior sipnaling a willful default arc few ples for taking specific provision is made:

l. Merchani accounts with DPD’ greater than 300 days

iii. Fraud

Dther Provisi

Provisions are recognized where reliabie estimate can be made for probable outflow of resources 1o settde the present abligation s a result of past event and the same is reviewed al
each Balance Shecl date. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted ¢o their present value and are derermined based on the best estimale Tequired o sertle the
abligation at the balance sheel date.

Contingent Liabilities

Disclosurs for contingent liability is made when there i3 a possible obligation or a present obligation thal mav. but probably wili nat. require an sutflow of resources. Contingemt Asset
is neither recognized nor disclased in the £ ial stab
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Taxation
i) Provision foe current tax, of applicable, is made after taking into consideration benefis available under the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961

iipMinimum Alternative Tax {MAT) is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income Tax during the
specified period. In the year in which the MAT credil becomes ehgible 10 be recognized as an asset in aceordance with the recommendations ¢ ined in guidance note issued by the
ICAL the said ssset is created by way of credit to Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as MAT credit entilement. The Company revicws the same at each Balance Sheet date and
writes down the camying amount of MAT cntitiernend to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during be specified
period.

i) Provision is made lor defersed tax liability for all iming differences arising between taxable incomes and accounting income at latest enacied income tax rates. Deferred tax assets
& liatilines are offser, if a fegally enforceable right cxists 10 set ofF current lax assets aganst cumerd tax liabalitics and relate to 1he taxes on income governed by the same taxaton

laws. Deferved tax assets are recognized only if theee is reasonable cenainty that they will be realized and are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying values al
cach Halance Shesi date.

Baorrowing Cost :

Change n Accounting Folicy

a Interest on bormowings is recognized ob a lime proportion basss lakmg into account the amount oulstanding and the rate applicable on the borrowings.

b. Discoun on Commicrewd pagers is amortized over the enor of the undertying instrumenl.

<. Fremium payable on vedemption of debentures is accrued over the fenor of the debentures.

d. Ancillary Charges such as processing fees or loan managemend [tes incurred in connection with the amangement of borrowings, meluding bormowings sanchoned bt not availed, is
amortized on 2 straight-line basis, over the kenure of the respective bormowings.

¢. Unamortized borrowing costs remaining, il any, are fully expensed off as and when the related borrowings are prepasd / cancelled.

f. Borrowing cost direcily atiributable 10 1he acquisition or tion of qualifying assets 15 capitalized In determining the amount of borrowing costs elipible for capilalization
duning the penod. any income camed on the kmporry investrivents of those bormrowing is deducted from cosl incurred.

¢. Other borrowing costs, nol specified above, are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurved.

Operaiing 1.cases
Lease rent in respect of assels taken on operating lease are charped 1o Staternem of Profit & Loss as per the torms al lease agreemens.

Earning per share
In determining earming per share, the Company considers the nel prolit after tax and includes the post tax effect of an extrordinary ¢ exceptional item, if any. The number of shares
used in computing besic eamning per share is the weighted average number shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating difwied caming per share. the net profin or

loss for the period atributable 1o squity shareholders and the weighicd average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares

Share Jssue cxpenses

Share issues expenses arc adjusied against Secunilics Premium Account as permissible voder Scclion 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 10 the extend of any balance is available for
utilizanon in the Securities Premiwm Account and i contain expenses paid For Arvanper fees, Stamp duty, ROC fees and Legal fees.

Sbare Capita):
As al

J1st March 2017 I1st March IB16
Authorized Share Capital
1.90 G000 (Previous year |,90,00.000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- cach §9.00,00.000 1%.00,00.000
2.88,00.000 { Previous year 1.75.00,000) Preterence Shares of Rs. 104 each 28,00,00.000 17.50.00,000

47.00.00,000 36,50,00,000
Issmed, Subseribed and Fully paid-up Share Capital
1,80,00,500 { Previous year 1.80.00.400) Equity Shares ol Rs. 10/- cach iuly paid up 1B.00,05 000 18.00,04.000
2,683,692 (Previous year 1,72,43,420) 0.01% Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 26,81,16,920 17.34,34,200
of Rs. 10v- each fully paid up
Totai 44,83,21,920 38.34.38.200
2016-17 201516
iNos.) Amouat{Rs.) {Nos.) Amouni{#s.}
Outstanding a1 the beginning of Ihe period 1.80.00.400 18.00,04,000 1,80,00,300 18.00.03.000
Shares allotied during the period 100 1.000 100 1,009
Outstanding a1 the end of the period 1,.80,00,500 18,00,05,.000 1,50,00,400 18,00,04,000
HMG-17 201516
{Nox.) Amouni(Rs.) {Nos.) Amownt(Rs.)

COutstanding at the beginning of the period 1.73.43.420 17.34.34,200 14972538 14.97.25380
Shares allotied during the period 94 88272 9,48 82,720 23,70 8K2 2.37.08.820.00
Outstanding sl the end of 1he period 2,68.31,692 26,83,16,920 1,73,43,420 17,34,34,200

During the year, the company issucd and allorted 100 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at premivm of Rs. 103.17/ per share. through private placement. Consequently the paid-up equity
share capial has increased by Rs. [,000~ & Securitics Preminm by Rs. 10,317/~ _ vide resolution dated 2 15t June 2016,

The Company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/ (Indian Rupees Ten) per share. Cach shareholder is eligible for o vote per share held. The dividend
proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject 10 the approval of the shareholders in the g Annual G 1 Meeii ¢ 1n cuse of interim dividend In the event of
tiquidation, the equity sharcholders are ¢ligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company afier dlstl"lbutmn of all preferentlal amounts in propartien fo their sharcholding.

Thc (.onlpam has a sm;,le chss af prcferencc shan:s, Cumu.lalm: Lonvemble Preference Shares (CCPS), having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per share. Each share of the series A CCPS
shall t converted intc one Equity Sharz of lace valne of Rs. 19 (indian Rupges Ten) cach subject to 1+3 reqmrcd for any possible corpm share split, issue

dene by investors on any date, provided 30 days advance writien notice is given 10 the Comp
of 0 G125 per annum



Deiaibs of shareholiders hodding more than 5% equily Shares in the ( om

2016-17 201516

(% holding in the %% kalding in all (% bolding in the % holding in all
s class) classey G class) clanses
Dhruv Kumar Khaitan £0,00.000 ELAL 2007% $0,00,000 49 599 15.46%
Pivush Kumar iChaitan 90,00,000 4% 900, 20.07% 90,00,000 49.999% 35.46%

Detaifs of shareholders hadding more than 57 Prelevence Shres in the Campany as un copoting date:

— 01617 2015-16
1% belding in the " holding in sl {% holding in the & holding in all
) clhass) claszes s class) classes

Aspada Investment Company 41,89,311 15.61% 934% 3298624 19.02% ©.30%
ON Mauritiug 78.61,825 29.30% 12.54% 87.00,764 50.17% 24.62%
Khosla Impact | Mauritios 3231470 1212% 7.25% 29.86,382 17.22% B.45%
Agcion Fromier tnclusion Mauritius 48.75,985 15.17% 10.88% 23,357,650 13.55% 6.67%
{IFL Seed Ventures Fund [ 48,59,845 1B.11% 10.84%

West Bridge Crossover Fund LELC 17.93.256 6.68% 4.00%

Detait of shares allotred »ithoul payment being received in cash during five vears immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date ave given below:
Nil.

Terms of any securities converiibie into equity / preference shares insned along wHh lke earflesi date of conversiva o descevding onder starting from the farthest sach date:
74,62,587 shares - 0.01% fully convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 104- each are convertible inte equity sharc in the ratio of | cquity share for cvery | preference shares
held at the end of twenty years from the date of allotment (22nd May 2013} ot earlier a1 the option of the preference shareholder. The conversion can be done by investors on any date
. provided 30 days advance written notice is given 1o the Company by the respective investor.

16,97 479 shares - 0.00% fully convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10/ each are convertible into equity share in the ratio of | ¢quity share for every | preference shares
held at the end of rwenty years from the date of allotment (25th Mar 2014} or earlier ai the option of the preference sharcholder. The conversion <an be done by investors on any date .
provided 30 days advance writlen notice is given to Ihe Company by the respective investor.

11,351,720 shares - 0.01% fully convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10/- each are sonvertible into equuy share in the matic of | equity share for every | preference shares
held a1 the end of twenty years from the date of allotment ( 191k June 2014) or eartier a1 the option of the pref sharcholder. The ion can be done by investors on any dake |
provided 30 days advance writlen notice is given fo the Company by the respective invesios,

46,80,752 shares - 0.01% fully convertible cumulative preference shares of Rs. §04 each are conventible into equity share in the ratio of { equity share for every | preference shares
held at the end of twenty years from the dare of allotment (315t Mar 2015) or earlier al the option of the preft narcholder. The ¢ o can be dome by investors on any date
provided 30 days advance wnilten notice 1% given 1o the Company by the respective investor.

13.232 shares - 0.01% Rally convertible cumutative preference shares of Rs. 104+ cach are convenible into equity sharc in the ratio of | equity share for every | preference shares heid
at the end ol rwenty years fiom the dsie of allotment (06th Apr 2015} or carfier al the oplion of the preference sharehelder. The conversion can be done by investors on any daw .
provided 30 days advance writien notice is given 1o (he Company by the respective investor.

23.57.650 sharcs - 0.1 % Rully convertibie cumulative preference shares of Rs. 10/ each are convertible into equity share in the radio of 1 equity share for every 1 preference shares
held al the end of twemty years from the date of allotment (20th July 2015) or earlier at the option of the preference shareholder. The conversion can be done by investors on any daie
provided 30 days advance written notice is given 1o the Company by the respective investor.

94,28 272 shares - 0.01% (ully convertible cumulative preferemce shares of Rs. 10/- gach are convertible into equity share in the ratio of | equity share for every | prefercnce shares

hetd al the end of twenty years from the date of allotment (2st June 2016) or cartier at 1he option of the preference sharcholder. The conversion can be done by investors on any date .
provided 30 days advance writlen potice is given 10 the Company by the respoclive investor.

Reserves and Surplus: As at
st March 2017 3ist March 2016
Statuiory Reserve
1As requited u's 45 1C of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)
Balance as ai the beginning of the year 1LIR77) 1.38.771
Add" Transferred from profil during the vear 1.14.60.761 -
Balance as ™ the end of the year 1,15,99,532 138,771
Securities Premivm Account
Balance a5 af the beginning of the year 54.27.55.614 418083154
Add: Premium on issue of Equity Shares 10317 5,362
Add; Premium on issue of Prefersnce Shares 978905022 E2.70,26,692
Less: Share Issue Expense{Refer Notz 2,16) (70.86.188) 124,59.594)
Ralance as at the end of the year 1,51,45,84,765 54,27,55614
Deficit in the statement of Profit & Loss
Balznce as at the beginning ot the year (45.76,59.437) {34,30,94 938)
Add: Profit{Loss) for the period 5.73,03.803 (11.4547832)
Less: Transferred to Siatutory Reserve ufs 45 IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 {1,14,60,761) -
Less: Dividerd on CCPS - (a) 134.700) { 16,667)
Balance as at the end of the year (41,18,41,09%) (45,76,59,437)
Contingency Fund - Unutilized - 22.50.026
Total 1,11,43,43,202 8, 74,0497

(a} In compli with the provigions. the Management has provided for dividend on Series A of Cumulative Converlible Preference Shares at 1he rate of 0.01% on a prorate basis.

(b} Dividend Distribution Tax on the same wilk be paid 1o Central Govemment within 14 days from the date of declaration. distribution or paynient of such diwidend, whichever is
eartiest. subject 10 approval of the shareholders.
onl
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Now-Current Linbilities

Long Ferm Borrowings:
Non - Carrent Portion Currect Malorities * Towlk
3lst March 2017 It March Xiin Jlst March 2017 316t March 2016 Ist March 2017 Jix March 2016
Secured:
Redeemable Non Convertible- Debenturcs {a) 30,00.00.000 30.00,00,000 30.00,00 000 30,00.00,000
Redeemable Non Convernible- Debeniures {b) 20,24 67000 - 20.24.67,000 -
Redeemable Non Convertible- Debentures (¢) 40,00.00,000 40.00.00.060
Redeemable Non Convertible- Debentures (d) 40,00,00.000 40,00,00,000
Redecmable Non Convertibie- Debentures (¢} 40,30,00.000 403000 000
Redeernable Non Convertible- Debentures {f) 40,00,00.0G0 40,00,00,000
Redeemable Non Convertible- Debenfures () 35.00.00.000 35.00,00,000
Redeemabie Non Comvertible- Debentures (h) 32,50,00,000 - 32,50,00,000
Redeernable Non Convertible- Debentures (i) 23333333 E 16.66.66,667 25,00,00.000
Loan from Financial Institution (k} 346788325 64,73.82,704 40,8138 895 69.06,47.468 754927220 1,33.80.30,172
Unsecured:
Redeemable Now Convernible- Debentores () - 25.00,00,000 - - 25 00, 00,000
3,21.0588,658  1.19.73.82,7(M £T4B.05562  04.06.47.468 3,78,53,94,220  1,88,80,30,172
* Current Maiurities of Long - Term Borrowings are disclosed under the head "Other Current Liabilities™
Debentures comprises of following:
Security Details  Date of Allounent s Amount Redemiption Drate
11.5% Redecmable Non - Convernble Debeniures of Rs. 10 [ac each # I 22-Jan-16 o0 30,00.00.000 212-Jan- 19
13.25% Redecmable Mon - Convertible Debentures of Bs. 1000 each ¥ 1 26-May-16 202467 20,24,67.000 28-May- 19
13.42% Redetemable Mon - Converible Debentures of Rs. 10 lac each # 1 29-Sep-16 400 "40,00,00.000 29-5ep-19
13.34% Redeemable Non - Convertible Debenturcs of Rs. 10 Jac cach # | 2Z-Mov-16 404 40,00,00.000 22-Nov-19
13.53% Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures of Rs. 10 lac each # | 16-Aug-16 403 40,30,00,000 17-Aug-19
14.30% Redeernable Mon - Conventible Debentures of Rs. 11 Jac cach # i 2%-Jun-16 400 40.00.00,000 27-Jun- 19
i4.2% Redeemable Non - Convertibie Debentures of Ks. 10 lac each # 12 OF-Feb-17 350 35,00,00,000 07-Feb-23
13 55% Redecmable Non - Convertible Debentures of Rs. 10 lac each # 1 F6-Mar-17 328 32,50,00.000 16-Mar-20
13.35% Redecmable Non - Convertible Debentures of Rs. | lac cach # | 29-Mar-17 2500 25.00,00,000 28-Sep-18
17.5% Redzemable Non - Convertible Debentures of Rs. 10 lac each ## NA 18-Dec-15 250 25,00,00,000 17-Aug-16

# These Detentures are secured by a first charge over the current assets, book debis, receivables and such other assets of the company and is served by way of a charge up to 1.2 times
of the merchant advance portfolio. Interest is payable monthly quarterly and balf - yearly. These debentures are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange.

## These Debentures are unsecured and subordinated ko senior debis and eligible for capitalization as Tier-2, Interest was payable every quarter beginning from March2016. This has
been prepaid in August 2016,

Partivilars Rate of Tnterest Dt wl oan iiken D:elclﬂm Se:uﬂléDcl!lls s M“S: ;ota;n:mg '?!T:I;m‘ch 2016
L.oan from Financial Institwion 14.00% 27-Juw-15 27-)ul-17 1.2 times 3,33,33.336
Loan froms Figancial Institution 14.00% 30-Nov-15 30-Now17 1.2 times 3.33.33,332
l.o2n from Fipancial Institution 15.50% 23-Oct- 15 OB-Nov-17 1.2 times 4.26,98.466
Loan trom Financial Institution 13.62% 22-Mar-16 07-Apr-18 1.1 tumes 1,44,59,793 2.44,72.605
Loan from Financial Institution 13.62% 20-8ep-15 01017 1.1 times - 2.50,00.000
Loan from Financial Instimation 14.70% 2G-May-15 31-May-1? 125 nmes - 6.96.06.604
Loan from Financial Institution 14.70% 23-Juk15 3-Juk-18 1 times 155,855,559 62222224
Logn from Financial Instituthon 14.70% 09-Sep-i§ 31-Avg-18 1 times 24519482 3,86.08,877
Loan from Financial Institution 14.30% 14-0ci-15 31-O¢t-18 | times 22001972 3,25,00,000
Loan from Financial Institution 14.50% 28-Jan- 16 31-lan-19 | times 46481238 6,69.48,103
Loan from Financisl Instittion 14.50°% 21-Mar-16 29-Mar-19 I times 32380619 450,00 0()
Loan from Financial Lnstitution 14.50% 31-Mwe-16 29-Mar-19 1 times 1,42.92,382 2.00.00.000
Loan ffom Financial lnstitution 15.50%% 12-Dec-14 L1-Dec- b7 §.25 umes - 28253423
Loan from Financia) [nstirution L5.50% 03-Aug-13 31-Jul-18 1.25 times 4,19.97 295
Loan from Financial lnstitution 15.50% 03-Dec-15 03-Dec-18 1.25 imes 9.33,16,202
Loan from Financial [nstivtion 15.50% 20-WNov-13 30-New-17 1.1 limes 6,56.25.000
Loan frem Financial Instination [4.75% 14-Mar-16 30-Aug-17 I times 7.50,00.000
Loan from Financiat [nstitution 14.75% 28-0ct-15 29-Apr-17 1 times 46944 445
Loan from Financial Enstitution 14.75% 29-Oci-15 20-Apr-17 1 times 252,771,780
Loan from Financial Enstitution 14.75% 26-Feb-16 30-Aug-17 1 times . 708,332,333
Loan frem Financial Instivution 15.50% 26-Feb-16 28-Feb-19 1.1 imes 10,00,00,000 15,00.00.000
Loan from Financial Institution 14.34% 02-Mar-16 01-Mar-18 1.25 times - 10,00,00.000
Loan ftom Financial Institution 14.40% 30-Oct-15 01-Nov-17 1.25 times 10.23.03,465
Loan from Financial Instittion 14.00% 14:-Dec-15 10-Dec- 17 1.25 times . 4,44,55,682
Loan from Financigl Institution @@ 15.00% 26-Apr-16 08-May-18 1.2 times 7.43.04 153
Loan from Financial Ingtitation @@ 14.75% 27-Apr-16 Jo-Apr-18 1 times 5.41.66.663
Loan from Financial Institation 13.75% 25-Apr-16 22-Apr-19 1.25 times 3.67,59.358
|gan from Financial Institulion. 13.80% 16-Mar-17 16-Mar-20 1 thimes 20,00,00.000
Loan from Financial Instiution @@ 13.00% 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-19 1 times 16,00,00.000

75.49,27.219 1,33,80,30.172

@@ Charge over Cumrent Assets, Book Debts, Recrivables and such other assets of the Company.

04D Above loans fromn Financial Institation are being further secured with cash collateral by way of a fixed deposit of Rs.63,12.500 (Previcas Y ear Rs.5,07.50,000)

As nt
Long Terss Provisions: Jlst March 2007 3st March 2016
Provision for Employee Benefits “y 52,12,710 24,54,63)
Provision of SARs Ase (net off) (Refer Note 31(3)) 53855820 2,16,41,684
Provision against Standard Assets (Refer Note 26 (i) 4.74.877 3.60.273

5,95,43,407 2.44,56,588




As at
Jist March 2007 31st March 2016

7 Oiher Lang Term Liabilities:
Lizhility for capital expenditure 113K 236 11,10.246
10,38,236 11.10.246

Current Lintrilities
§  Short Term Borrowings:

Secured:
Loan from Bank (a) 5,00.00 000 -
Loan from Financial Institution {b) 25.77,12.6M4 20,66.03,280
Cash Credit Facility (€) 8.55.01.595 $#8.77,634
Commercial Fapers (d) 90293400 -
48,35,07.669 21,54,81.414
Parhiculars Rate of Inverest Date of loan taken  Dase of sertlement Secun%Dewls 31st Mufm — A:': ::Igarch Sk
a)  Loan from Bank 1L.00% 2)-Dec-16 21017 133 times 3.00.00,000
b)
Loan from Financial Instiution 15.75% 28-Nov-14 0-May-16 1.25 tines 55.55,551
Loan tfrom Financial Tnstitution 15.65% 23-Jan-15 31-jan-17 1.25 times 2,08,33333
Loan from Financial Institution 15.65% 25-Feb-15 2B-Feb-17 1.25 titnes 18333333
Loan from Financial Institution 15.45% 26-Mas-15 31-Mar-17 1.25 times 2,00.00.000
Lean from Financial [nsttution 15.50% 24-jun-15 30-Dec-14 1 bmes 4.99.96.95%
Loan from Financial knstirution 15.00% 31-Aug-13 28-Feb-17 1 times 427179717
Loan from Financial Institution 15.00% 18-Sep-13 28-Feb-17 1 times 1.99,99.998
Loan from Financial Institution 15.00% 24-Jun-t5 Ol-Jan-17 1.25 times . 2.91,03.79)
Loan from Financial instilution 13.62% 30-Sep-15 07-0Ocr-17 1.1 umes 96,32.732
Loan from Financial Institution 15.50% 2301415 08-Nov-17 1.2 times 1,84,04 049
t.oan from Financial Instiation 15.00% 28-0c1-15 29-Ape-17 | Kimes 36,100,113
Loan from Financial [nstitation 15.00% 29-Daa-15 29-Apr-17 1 Gmes 19,44,452
Loan from Financial lnstitution 14,75% 30-0¢1-15 01-Nov-17 1.25 times 4,37,52 224
Loan {rom Financial institution 15.50%% 20-Nov-15 30-Nov-17 1.1 times 2,81.25.000
Loan from Financial Institution 15.65% 30-Now-15 30-Now-17 1.2 times £,33,33.328
Loan froum Financial Institorion 14.00¢%% 14-Dec-15 10-Dec-17 1.25 times 2,03.85,03)
Loan from Financial Instilution 15.00% 29.Fcb-16 30-Aug17 1 times 2,08,33,32¢
Loan from Financial Instilation 14.69% 02-Mar-16 01-Mar-18 1.25 times 5.36.36,189
Loan from Financial Institation 15,00% 13-Mar-16 20-Sep-17 1 times 2.49.99.997
Loan from Financial Instirution 15.45% 29-May-15 31-May-17 1 times 1.07,21.650
Loan from Financial Institution 15.65% 2T Jul-1 5 2Julk-i? 1.2 rimes 83,33, M0
d  Commercial Paper 10.75% 28-Dec-16 27-Dec-17 NA 9.02 93,400
39.80.06.07M 30.66,03,780

@ Above ioans from Financial Ingtitution are being further secured with cash collateral by way of' a fixed deposit of Rs.2,62.43.056 {Previous ycar Rs.3,97,33,366)
¢ Represented by Cash credit facility ameunting 1o Rs. 10.00,00,000 {Previous ysar Rs.5,00,00,000) which is served by way of a charge up 10 1.33 tires {Previous year 1.33 times) of
merchan( advance portivlio and secured against fixed deposit of Rs. 1,08,13,208 {Previous year Rs. 1 00,00,000)

As at
3Est March 2617 st March 2016

9 Trade Payables;
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises { Refer Note 30) =

Others 2,56,39 822 92,319,533
2,56.89.822 92,390,533
10 Other Current Liabilisies:
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debis {Refer Note-3) 574805562 69,0647 468
Inverest accrued bl not due on borrowings
Loan from Financial [nstination 38,138,601 6399568
Commercial Papers { Amortized Discount} 24,94 782
Redecmable Mon Convertible- Debemures 5.53.97.400 7820954
Statutory dues payable
TDS Payable 1,3399.4%4 74,51,162
Employves Relaed 8.84.850 6,81,057
Service Tax 254,534 205438
Payable towards Securilization Transaction 7.76,03,896 4,51,41,650
Merchants Balances 1,43,77,957 68,60.773
Other payabies
Employse 27,70,364 21,08,763
Others - 3.10.967

74,58,06,120 16,76,27.5080




(a)

Short-term Provisions:
Provision for Employees Benefits
Gratuity
hers
Provision against Standard Assets (Refer Note 26 (i)
Provision for Current Tax
Onher Provisions:
Provision for Refermal Agent Commission
Provision for Incentive
Provision for CCPS
Provision for Sales & Jackpot Contest
Provision for Other Expenses

Long Term Loaos and Advances:
{Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)
Security Deposits
Loan to Merchants
Secured Considered Good

Other Non-Curreat Asset:

Deposit with Bank & Financial Instinrion
Urnamonized Finance Cost
Prepaid Expenses

*Above fixed deposit includes Rs. 60,00,000 (Previous Year Rs 5,07 50,000) kept as cash collateral agains1 oan{ Refer Note-5 & 8)

Current Asscts

Trade Receivables:

Cuistanding For & persod kess than Six Months
Unzecured Considered Good

Casb & Cash Equivalent:
Cash & Cxash Equivalent constitutes of
Balances with banks.
Current Accounis
Cash on Hand
Orther Balances
Fixed Deposits {a)

Details of Bank Balances/ Deposits

Fixed Deposit held as secunity against Joans due 10 mature within |2 monihs

from the reponiing date and incloded under ‘Oher Bank Balances'

Fined Deposit held as security agains! loans due to mature after 12 months
from the reporting date and incleded under '‘Other Curred and Non Current

Assers’

A at
3ist March 2017 351 March 2016

4,59.857 7,13,003
1.91.46,506 1,09.46,239
1,12,88,288 56,46, 517

65.98.462

3.06.10,286 1.04.54.948
85,23 882 4843709
60,578 35878
94,53.334 41,44.165
1.76.15.736 1976 577
10.37.%6.929 10711036
1,97.98.450 1,39,16.435
18.99.50,78) 14.41.09.034
20,97,49.231 15,80.25. 467
1,37.00.008 8,55,56,579

4309.732 -

2.85.133 3.97.101

1,82,94,873 8,59,53,680
89.98.586 307476

89 98,586 317,476
1.12,96,70.573 $,57,26.824

526,724 243288
4,82.86.846 =

1,17,24,84,143 8,59.70,112
4,82 86,846
1.37.00.008 8,55,56.579
6.19,86.854 855,56, 579

“From above fixed deposit Rs. 1,89,73,538 (Previous Year Rs. 107,78,769) has been kept 2s cash collaleral against Securitization (Refer Nate 39) ang balance Rs. 3,53.13,316 kept as

cash collateral 1owards bormowings (Refer Note 5 & 8)

Short - Terw Loans and Advasces:
Loan to Merchants

Secured, Considered Good
Secured, Considered Doubaful
Less - Provigion For doubtfi asset
Less ; Provision For Loss asset
Secured, Considered Bad
Less - Advances wntien ofT { Refer Note 23)

Advances recoverable in cash ot in kind
Unsecured, Considered Good
From Employee
Others

Other Advances & Balances

{Unseeured, Considered Good, unless atherwise stated )
Balance with Government Authonties { Tax Deducted at Spurce)

Ower-Collateriscd Securitized Asscts {Refer Note 38)
Excess Imerest spread Receivables (Refer Note 38)

Cenval receivables

Recoverable from Syndicate Asset
Less: Provision for Syndicate Assel
Others

ko

"-,GHI

e
*

=

e

4514270407 2249747293
15,36,40,819 5.01.63,672
(2,15.27.560) (4.24,84.916)
(1.27.99,152)

9,57.00,766
(9.57,09.766) -

4633584514 2257426049

10,49.208 7,11.863
1.16.2).554 14,566,053
1.56,64.427 31,89,140
31,719.64.276 21799876

97,07.872 39.28.639

24,183,049 37.38.443

10.68.120 -

(10.68.120) .
8.05.067 45041

4,71,28,14,967 2,29,29,05,104




18 Other Current Assets:

21

23

(a)

Deposit with Financial Institution
Inkerest Accrued & Receivable
Loan receivabies
Fixed Deposil
Prepaid Expenses
LUinamgrtized Finance Cost
Other Recervables

*Above Deposit with Financial institution are ke as cash collateral against loan from financal institonon | Refer Note-5 & &)

Revenue From Operalions;
Interest income
O Loan from Merchani{a)
Exeess Intcrest Spread on Securitization
Processing Fees
Merchan Service Fees
Service Fees on Syndication

Petra Incentive

Asal

JIst March 2017

Alst March 2016

80,55,556 2,83.05.556
6561770 42.17.1%0
3435474 4304431
37.96,806 21,52179

1,01.81,06% -
13.82.944 18.47.628
3.34,13.619 4,08.86.984

Y car ended

I1se Mareh 2007 st March 2016
1.09.67 86466 40,70,52 856
1.14,70,595 3028 63%
14,64 99013 58871127
3,60.63,337 1,33,08.184
30092045 3,75.826
75.90.973 4347473
1,32.85,02.429 18,78 84,199

(a) Interest Income from loan to merchants is vet of Rs.3.95,02, 150 (Previous yoar Rs. 73,92 615) towards the Rebate given to merchants on accounl of renewal, recovery g1

Other Income
[rteress Income

On fixed deposit

On income 1ax refund
Profit on sale of Invesimenis
Income from other Services
Miscellaneows [ncome
Liabitity no longer required

Employee Broellts Expeases

Salaries & Wages

Contribution to Provident or other funds

Staff welfare expenses

Employee Compensation Expenses Account (SARsKRefer Note 31{i))

Finaace Cost
Interest Expenses
(nher Borrowings cost

(rther Expenses;

Marketing Expenses

Professionai & Legal Fees

Rent

Commission

Travelling & Lodging Expenses

Provision for Standard Assets{Refer Note 26b)

Provision for Doubtful & Loss Assars(Refer Note 26a)
Provision Created during the year
Less: Provisson Reversat dunng the year
Less. Advancas provided in earlier year, now written ofF
Less: Condingency Fund Utilised during the year

Provision for Syndicate Assel

Advances writien off {[ncluding Fs5.349.3] lacs provided in earlier year)

IT Services Expenses

Fee & Stamp Charyes

Terminal deplovment charges

Service Tax Input Credit {Refer Note 27)

Rates & Taxes

Auditor’s Remunsraton (a)

Insurance expenses

CHfice and Maintenance Expenses

Power and Fugi Charges

Telephone & Internet Charges

Verilicstion and Fanng charges

Sundry Balances Write off

Discowmi to Merchants

Miscellaneous Expenses

Auvditors Remuneration
Statyiory Audit Fee

Other Certification Fee c/}‘ .
Out of Pocket Expenses ‘
r

76,06.752 6905915
360,224 1,272,638
3,66,16.792 90,61221
1341.648 525350
15.28,184 6.79.906
41.31.006 12,04.141
5,15,93,606 1,91.04, 200
30,84.21,662 16.91,.90.420
LELI7.5T7 69,99 833
94,59.027 72,54.797
3,214,136 1.68.37.332
361232402 20,0282 347
41,22 46,556 15,45 67 498
2.76.05,864 3.33.19.840
33,93.52,420 15,78.87.308
237,593,999 81,65.568
2.59.75.769 2,08.01,259
3.84,07,002 2,15,33,653
16.05,13.091 5,45,46.550
1,15.73.805 79.08.968
57,56.375 48,38 687
34326710 39786369
(75.54.169) (2,20,199)
(3,49,30 744)
(22,50,026) (1.04,08.225) 35166170
10.68,120
9,57.09.766
1,80,49.474 53,85.966
1,69.04.400 78.49.526
2,30,13.465 1,16,21.715
193467 300 90.43,321
22.36,172 6.92.165
10,70.540 242026
22,06,650 17.02.722
1,559,765 70,69.956
47 .43 233 2540 826
6205334 38,74,595
79,54,368 45.04.804
285407 -
10,82.279 .
16153914 90,38,867
18,72,20,202 22,12,27,345
O ?r.- 8,00,000 7.00,000
;j(“\ 2,00.000 2,22,500
F3 540 19 526
VANBA iy 2
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Year ended

st March 2017 3lst March 2016
Exceptioasd Ticm:
Prepayment Penalty™ 1,25.00.000
1,25,80,008

* Pertains k> a pre-payment charges of Subordinated Debi of Rs. 25 crore{Refer 5()).
Earning per Share (EPS)E:
Profit/ {Loss) for the period 5,73,03.803 {11,45.47.8315)
Less: Dividend Payable to preference share holders (24.700) {16,667)
Profit available 1o equity shareholders £1.79403 {14,45,64,502)
Weighted average number of shares used in the calculstion of EPS:
Weighted averape number of Equity shaces owtstanding during the year 1,40.00.478 1.80.60.367
Milutive impaci of CCPS 1.54.87,245 1.09.91.689
Weighted average aumber of Diluted shares outstanding during the year 33487723 2,89.92.0%
Face value of per share 10 16
Basic EPS £} ) {6.36)
Driluted EPS 1.7 13.95)

i atil bi

NPA classification & provision thereon:

Duriny the year, with effect from 1st October 2016, the Company has changed the policy related classification of Non - Performing Asset and provigion thereon, as stated in Note
2.10 The Company has moved to Days Past Dues and Latency concept, from Did Not Paid and Long Stop Date being followed carfier. Had the Company followed previous policy for
classification and provisioning on sub-standard doubtfu) & loss assets, the amoant of provision recognized would have been higher by Rs 196.64 lacs a3 cornpared to Rs, 853.02 lacs
(mcluding bad debts ie. loan writien ofl) recognized as per revised policy. Amount of Rs. 9537.09 tacs has been accounted as Bad Debis since the policy of writien off has been
nggered.

Provision has been made (@ 0.25% as prescribed in the Reserve Bank of laddia notification No UBD: BPDL{PCB) MC No.3 09 14.000/2014-15 daied July 3.2014.

Borrowing Cost:

During the year. the Company has changed the policy of recognition of expense, such as processing charges and Joan management lecs, incurred in relation with loans facitities
inchuding non - convertibe debentres availed. The management has decided to amotize the expenses incurred over the ienor of the loan since the loan managenent fees or
processing charges paid are in the nansre of the services to be provided across the period of the Yoan. Had the Company followed previous policy for expensing oul the expenses as
ai when incurred, the amount of finance charges (refer note 2.13) would have been higher by Rs 144.90 lacs as compared to Rs. 4398.52 lacs recognized as per the revised policy.

As per Rule 6(3B} of Cenval Credit Roles, 2004 Banking Company and Financial Institutions incliuding NBEC shad! pay for every month an amount oqual to $0% of the Cenvat Credit
availed. Accordingly, the Company has availed 50% of Service Tax [nput eredit available snd balance $0%, apprepating to Rs. 193 67 lacs {Previous Year Rs. 90.43 lacs) has been
charged o the Starement of Profit & Loss.

Capitaliration and Ameriization of Advence Suite
The Company had developed the ERP hranded as "Ad Snite” for ing its dending business. The Company has the full begal ownership of the 1P of this ERP suite and has the
complete and unbridics nights 1o rent. sell, dicense or distribule the future cconomic benefis without disposal of the asset. In compliance with Accounting Standard 26 “intangibie

Asset”, the Company has capitalized the amoum incurred §or the development of the asset. The useful life of the assel has been determined 84 moruhs on the basis of future benefits
and other aspects.

Certain balances related 40 advances, reueivable and payable are subject to confirmation In the opinion of the manegement, these afe fully recoverable except advances considered
doubifid.

Eclosure pede p Micvo, Soepll & Mol EDSCIDeiss

Te are no Micrg, Smali & Medium Enterprise (MSME) to whom the Company owes ducs which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 3151 March 2017, This information as
reguired 10 be disclosed under the Miceo, Small & Medium Enierprise Developmen Act, 2006 has been determined 1o the extent such panties have been identified on the basis of the
information available with the Company and provided by the partics.

Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR PLAN 2015)

a) The board of dircciors of the Company had unanimously passed a resolukion 1o grant Stock Appreciation Rights{SARs) to sel of the Company from the
date of their appointment. These SARs will vest as per the terms and conditions of grant end will be settled in cash, The contractual life of SAR is 5 years. The fair valuve of SARs is
measured at the grant daie taking into scoou teems and conditions upon which the instruments ase granied.

CMROYFOes!

Detaily of sctivity under SARs is summarized below:

Particulars st March 2817 | Jisi March 2036
SARs O ding at the beginsing of the year 535,000 448,000
Rights Vested during the year 5,212,000 87,000
Lixercised dunng the year = -

Expired/Lapsed/Transferred duning the vear (1,43,100) -

Outstanding at the end of the year 9.13.900 535,000
Total Liabiliy of SAR granted during the year @ fair value of Rs. | 58 per shawe (Previows Year Rs 113 15) 11,27,18,180 5.30.10.330

Effect of the SARs plan on the statement of profit and koss and en its financial position:

Particulars

13l March 2017

31st March 2016

Totel Liability of SAR granted 1§,27,18,180 5.30.10,330
Toral employee compensaion cost pertaining to SARs for the year as per the kerms of vesing 32204136 1.68,37.332
Opening baiange of provision for SARs Wi it p 2,16,4]1 684 48,04,352

Jctosing balance of provision for SARs (Net o Gl g e Py 5 38,55.820 2,16.41.684

fof 7/ X~ ~F



(a).

{b).

(e).

).

Jz

tn respect of Gratuity . a Cefined Benefit Scheme (based on actuanial valuztion)-

Year ended
Jst March 2017 3ist Mareh 2016
Change in Defined Benefit Obligations
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligarions at the beginning of the year 3167634 14.76.020
Curend Service Cost 26,24,805 1568379
Past Serviee Cost - N
Interest Cost 250065 1.10.938
Curtailment Cost! (Credil)
Sertlement Cost/ (Credit)
Plan Amendments .
Actuarisd (Gain) or Loss {3,69.937 12.288
Benefits Paid - -
Present vaive of Defined Benefil Obligations at the end of the vear 56.72.567 31,67.634
Chaage in Plag Assets{Reconciliation of opening and closing balanies)
Foir value of Plan Assets at the beginning of Lthe year
Expecied retum on Plan Assets
Actuarial Gain or {Loss)
Contributions
Benefits paid
Enir value of Plan Assels ai the end of the year
Reconciliation of fair value of nssets sad obligations
Fair value of Plan Assets a1 the end of the year - -
Present value of Defwied Beneht Obligations at the end of the vear 54,72.567 3167634
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 56,72,567 167,634
Expense recopuized during the year
Curmrent Service Cast 26,24,303% 1568379
Past Service Cost Z =
Interest Cost 2,50,065 1.10,938
Curlailment Cost/ (Credit) .
Senlement Cost! (Credit) - -
Actuarial (Gain) or Loss {36993 12,238
Expected return on Plan Assets o 3
25.04,933 16.91.605
Principal acleatal assumpion
o ! AsSUmption in Assumption in
Farticolars 313t March 20017 31st March 2016
Driscount rae 7.5% per anoum 7.9% per annum
Withdrawal rate, based on age |
<Upio 44 Vears 3% por anmin 2% per antion
~Above 44 years 1% per annum 1% per anhutn
Salary increases T per ann

The Company is noi having policy for leave encashment. hence no provision has been made during the year.

Operating Lease:

The aggregate leasc rentals for operating leases for the period agpregne 1o Rs. 384,07,092/4 {Previous year: Rs.215,33,653/).
The votal of furure minimum lease payment commitments under operaling lease agreement are as under:

Nol kater ihan one year
Later than one year and not laler than live years
Later than five years

Deferred Tax Linhility (Net):

Major compoanents of Deferred Tax 2rising on account of emporary timing differences are piven below:

Deferred Tax Lirbilities
Depreciation and Amortization Fxpenses

Less: Deferred Tax Asscis

Gratuiry disallowances

Accumulated Losses & Unabsorbed Depreciation
Provisicns disallowed in Coerrent Year, allowable in ture

Net Deferred Tax Assel
Amount recognized in the books

Deferred Tax Asset has been recognized 1o the extent of Deferred Tax Lisbitity NIL (Previous Year Rs.3,21.757)

T% per annum

Asat
Slst March 2017 st March 2016
40921102 3,13.27.382
1.23.61,002 562,14 916

Asat
J1at March 2017 35t March 206
(5.44,105) 321,757
(5.44,105) 3,21,757
774,024 978799
4.6%.14,007 1.63,39.915
4,48 67,027 2.50.67.589
9,25 55,058 4,.24.86,303
9.30,99,163 d4,21.64,546
Nl Mil

The Company has reviewed the position of deferred tax asset & liability as on 3151 March 2017 and having regards 1o condifion specified AS-22 "Accounting for Taxes On Income™

and conservative approach, has not recognized DTA arising on account of ag lated Yosses, disall

wes and reversal of DTL.
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Related Pariy Disclosvres:

Enterprise where Key Managerial P I has
InnoWorth Technologies Private Limited

Ditta Services LLP

Key Managerial Persoanel
Mr. Piyush Kumar Khaitan
Mr. B Ravi Kumar

Mr. Sanjoy Shome

Direciors
Mr. Dheuv K uinar Khaitan
Mr BS Nagesh

i ant influence or control

Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director

Chief Finansce Officer (CFO) & Company Secretary {CS)

Chief Operating Officer (COO)

Chairman
Director

Disclosure of transactions berween the Company and Related Parties during the year in the ordinary course of business and status of oatstianding balances at year end:

Current Year

. - L Amsum of Oatstanding as ou
N r
g e cle) kAN s Teansaetion | 31s1 March 2017
1Dilta Seevices LLP rFClr Infrastruciure mamienance charges recovered 1341 648
[Me. Pivush Kumar Khaitan ftManagerial Remuncration (including pergquisiles) 44,406,000
|Mr. BS Nagesh JProfessional fees 18,00,000 1.57,500
IMr. B Rgvi Kumar IRemuneration (inchuding perquisites) 93,04,103
IMr. B Ravi Kumay Y Advance against Salary 5.00,000 {5.00,000)
I M. Sanjov Shome JRemancration (including perquisites) 92.44,297
Previous Year
: i Amount of Ouistanding as on
Name Nature of Trunsaction Transaction 3ist March 2016
innoWorth Technologies Private Limited Fixed Asset Purchased 55.24,540 o0
Dilta Services LLP For infrastructure maintenance charges recoverad 6.01.537 128316
Mr. Pivush Kumar Khaitzn Managerial Remuneration (including perguisites) 34 40,000
|Mr. BS Nagesh Professional fees 12.00,000 1,80,000
{Mr. B Ravi Kumar R ion {including perquisiles) 88,14 080
Mr_ Sanjoy Shome Remuneration {including perquisies) 87.13.340
Asldiional it manion pursenn o Schedule B to the Companics Acl, 2013;
Expemliture in forentn currency during the year;
Year emded
3lst Marvch 2017 3ist March 2016
Professional and consultation fees 12,28.051 -
Armanger Fees - 48,75 000
DOue Diligence Fess 44,10.327 17,18.300
(her Expenses - 195,845
Contingent Liabiities:
The Company has no contingent liabilities or commitmenis as on the 3 Ist March 2017, excepd as stated in Note 39
Disclosure Pursuant to Securitios and Exchasge Board of Indis {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremenis) Reguiations, 2015
Ratings assigned by Credit Rating Ageacies:
As ot 314 March 2017 As st 33t March 1016
Farticulars = ~ )
f L Rating movni Rating
(im Crore) {in Crore)
Long Term Bank Facilities 150 [ICRAJBBB- (stable) 150 [ICRA]JBBB- (stable}
Mon Comvertible Debenture Programime 255 JICRAIBBB- {stable) 100 FICRAJBBR- {siable)
Non Convertible Debenture Programme 100 IND BBB
Non Conventible Debenture Programme 50 EBB sable
PTC Seriee Al 31.88 [ICRAYA - 9.16 [ICRAJA- (SO}
PTC Series A2 228 [ICRA}BBB - 0.54 JICRA]BBE- (SO)
. tizl Paper 10 Ad+
Sub-ordinsted Debt Programme Not Applicabl 25 |LCRAJBBB- (stablc}
Additional informatien:
PARTICULARS "‘;::;“" 31t March 2016
Debt / Equity Ratio 2.61 478
Ned Worth 1,55 10,65 590 43 8334 373
Net Profit Afler Tax 5,73.03 803 (11.4547 837}
Basic Earming Per Share (EPS) 318 (6.36}
=Hl &
Pursuant 10 ihe Compamies {Share Capital and Debentures Rule 2014) issued by Minisiry of Col it

covered by Sec 2{72} of the Companies Act, 2013 which have privately placed debentures a

@ﬂ:u
Accordingly, the Company has not created Debenture Redemption Reserve.

o

on-ciniiing Finance Wiﬂ Institutions
nglh B Tegljrement of cre mk vmprion Reserve.
_.-" '('ﬂ.: ;F' /_“\ -~ ™
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38 Disclosure Related Te Securitization;
During the year Company has sold loans through Securitization. The information on Securitization activity of the Company as an onginator is 85 shown below:

Yenr ended

Particuiars Jist March 2017 Jist March 2016
Total No of Loan Securitized'assigned 141 180
Total Book Value of Loan Securitizedrassigned 37.94.70,756 11.8%.36,181
Tolal Book Yalue of Loan Securitized/assigned Placed as Collateral 1.79.64.276 21799876
FD Piaced as cash collateral 1.89.73 538 1,07 78,769
Sales Consideration received for loans Securisized/assigned 34.15.33.680 9.76,08.917
Excess Interest Spread recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss QT07 872 39.28,639
Excess Intevest Spread reecognized in the statement of Profit & Loss and received during the year, with respect to cther transaction done in 1762723 -

previgus year

39 The Company has entered into an arrangement of co-lending to Ws customer along with Syndication Pariner. Share of co-lenders in al! syndicaied loan is fixed at 80% 1o be funded by
Syndicated Parmer and 20% to be funded by the Company. Total loan disbursed during the vear undes syndication arrangement amounts 1o Rs. 13.396 lacs. of which share of the
Company is Rs. 2,679 20 facs and balance of Rs. 10,716 80 lacs is share of Syrdicae Partner Asset under management (AUM) of Syndicated Partner as on the balance sheet date

amounts to Rs. 8,056.52 lacs. The Company has given a corporate guarandes 1o the Syndicated Parmer ta the extent of minimum of a) five percent of average outstanding of
Syndicated AUM of previous morvh, or b) five percent of Syndicated AUM on last daie of previous month.

40 Disclosvre Related to Specified Bank Notes(SBN):

Particulars SBNs e D:“"""“""" Totsl
Notes
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.20k6 T 2752500 474957 322745
Add: Permined Receipis 19.46,262 1946262
Less: Permitted Payments {15,51,923) (15,81.023)
Amount Deposited in Banks {27.52,500) (27.52.500)
Closing cash in hand a5 on 30.12.2016 - 8,659,296 8,69 206

4] The Company operales in a single reportable segment i e. financing. which has similar risk and returns for the purpose of AS-17 on "Segment Reporting” specified w's 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, sead with nule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, The Company operates in single geographical scgment i.e. Domestic.

42 In the Opwion of the management and to the best of its knowledpe and beliel, the value on realization of current assets, loans, advances and paymem of current liabilities and
provisions in the ordinary course of business would not be less/ more, than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance sheet.

43 Previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped Lo confirm to this year's classification, wherever necessary.
As per our reporl of even date artached.

For Singhi & Co.

For and on behalf of the Bowrd of Directors
Chanereig Accountants

o
Sul\ﬂndm [P Smils Aggarwal Pivush Khailan B. Ravi Kumar
Partner Dvirector CEO & Managing Direcior CFO & (S
Membership No. 071272 {DIN 01478327} {DIN 00DO2579) (DN 00046966)

Place: Mumbai
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Note-12

Tangible Assets

Original Cost Depreciation Net Block
Particulars Gross Block as at]  Additions Ded,lctlons Gross Block as A“".m.’l“ed Depr-e alplly : At(‘l.l.lllfllatt‘i.l As at
01.04.2016 R ————— during the a1 31.03.2017 depreciation as at] during the | Adjustments |depreciation as at 30.03.2017 As ot JLON 20
T uring the y year i 01.04.2016 year 31.03.2017 o
[Computers 1.98.48,904 ),14,27.175 3.12,76.079 1,11,22,991 81.55.415 1,92,78.406 1.19,97.673 87.25,9
|office Equipment's 40.43.832 1,98.705 42,42,537 27.33,142 6.80.120 34,13.262 8.29,275 13,106
Mobile Point of Sale Device 11,27.295 - 11,27,295 11,27,295% - 11,27.295 - -
Furniture & Fixlure 18,82,239 2,232,001 21,04,240 715,194 3.380014 10.53,208 10,51,032 11,670
License Property Improvement Work 1.38.86.193 1.38.86,193 47.92,904 34,64.029 82.56,933 56,29,260 90.93,2.
TOTAL 4,07,88,463 1,18,47,881 5,26,36,344 2,04,91,526 1,26,37,578 3,31,29,104 1,95,07,240 1,02.96,9.
[Previous Year Figures | 24791,399 |  1.59.97.064 | | 40788463 | 1.11,02,497 | 93,828,029 | | 2,0491,526 | 20296937 | 1,36.87.9
Intangible Assets
Originnl Cost Impairment Net Block
. . Accumulaied Recognized / . | Accumulated
Particulars Grc:’sls :‘:o;;‘] ;s 2 Additions \:I)'.:u ':::‘:I:“ (J:o;ls :;‘;:‘] ;5 depreciation as at|  Reversals/ E:d::;)::t: depreciation as at 31 :; ;:"7 Asat 31.60.201
=55 = ' e 11.04.2016 Deprecation | 1 | 31.03.2017 —

|Computer Software 1.92,58.172 1.92,58.172 66,81.439 27.51.168 94,32,607 98,25,565 1,25.76,73
[roTAaL 1.92,58,172 1,92.58.172 66,581,439 27.51.168 94,32.607 98.25,565 1.25.76.73
[Previous Year Figares 1.92.58,172 | | | 19258072 3930272 | 2751187 i 66,81.439 | 1,2576,733 | 1.53,27,90
Grand Total 6.00.46,535 1.18.47.881 7.18.94.516 2,70,72.965 1,53,88.746 4.25.61.711 2,93.32,805 3287167
Grand Total (PY) 4.40.49,571 1.59.97.064 6,00,46,635 1,50,33,769 1.21.39,19% 2.71,72.965 3,28,73,670 290.15,80




Annex -2

Schedule of the Balance Sheet of 2 non-deposit 1aking non-banking financial company (as required in terms of paragraph 13 of
Non-Banking Financial {Non-Deposit Accepting ar Holding) Companies Prudential Norms {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007

Particulars

Liabilities side :
Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive o interest accrued|  Amount out-
thereon but not paid: standing Amount overdue

(i)

ta) Debentures : Secured 3.03.04.67,000
: Unsegured
(ather than falling within the meaning of public deposils®)

(b) Deterred Credits -

(c) Term Loans 1,06,26,39.8%4
(d) lotes-corporate loans and borrowing -

{¢) Commercial Paper 9,02,93 400
() Other Loans (Cash Credit Facility) 8.55,01,595

* Please sez WNote | below

Assets side :

Amount
ostanding

(2) |Break-up of Loans and Advances including

bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below]
(a) Secured 4.85,78,62,006
b}  Unsecured

{3) |Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire

and other assets counting towards AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under Sundry deblors
ta)  Financial lease
(b} Operating lcase

ii} Stock on hire including hire ch nder biors

(a)  Assets on hire
(b} Repossessed Assels

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC aclivities
{a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (2) above

{4) [Break-up of [nvestments :
Current fnvestments ;
1. Quoted ;
(i Shares : (2) Equity
(b) Preference
tii) Debentures and Bonds
(it Units of mutuwal funds
vy Govermment Securilics
| Others {please specify)
2. Unquoted :
(1) Shares {a) Equity
{b) Preference
il Debentures and Bonds
i} Units of mutual funds
iv) Government Securities
{v) Ochers {please specify)
Long Tenm investments :
1. Quoted ;
{0 Shares : (a) Equity
{b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds

(i) Government Securillies /:‘H' r
4] Others (please specify) ?ﬁ';'i/'
=]
* (]
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2. Unquoted :
(i Shares : {a) Equity

(b) Preference
() Debentures and Bonds
{iib) Units ol mutual funds
{iv) Governmen Securilies

(v} Othwers (please specify)

(5) Borrower group-wise¢ classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:
Please see Note 2 below

Category Amount net of provisions :
Sceurcd Unsecured Totl

I. Retuted Parties **
(#) Subsidiaries
(b} Companics in the same group
(¢} Quher relaled parties -
2, (ther than related parties 4,85,78,62,006 4.85,78,62.006

Total 4,85,78.62 006 - 4,85,78.,62.006

(68) lnvestor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities
{bath quoted and urquoted):
Please sce note 3 below

Market Value /
Category Break up or fair
value or NAY

Book Value (Net
of Provisions)

1. Related Parties **

(a) Subsidianes

{b} Companies in the same group
(e) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

Total
** As per Accounting Standard of 1CA) (Please see Note 3}

{7} Other Inlarmation

Particulars Amount

(i} Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related partics
(b} Other than relaled parties 15,36,40.819
(u) Net Non-Performing Assers
(s} Related parties
(b)  Odher than related parties 11.93.14,107
i Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Notes:

1 As defined in paragraph 2(1)}xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Companics Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions,
1998.

2 Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007

3 All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAl are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as
also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, markel value in respect of quoted investments and break up/fair value/NAYV in
respect of unquoted investments should be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classilied as tong term or cwrrent in (4) above.

For Singhi & Co. For anil on behall of the Board of Dircetors

Chartergd Accountants p
____Regisifftion No.302049E p )
l'h -

A =e, R = NGO S
E;lkhendra [,(IIEH = Smila Aggamal Pi’l.l.!ll Khaitan B.Ravi Kumar
Partner Director CEO & Managing Director CFO & CS
Membership No. 071272 {IIN 01478327) {DIN 00002579) (DIN 00346966)

Place: Mumbai -
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